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Herrera seeks injunction to halt discrimination
over Section 8 housing vouchers
City Attorney calls vouchers ‘an essential tool for many San Franciscans to access
affordable housing—especially in crisis like the one we are currently experiencing’
SAN FRANCISCO (April 20, 2016)—City Attorney Dennis Herrera is seeking a tough, enforceable
court order to prevent a residential landlord and an affiliated real estate broker from continuing to
flout the law by refusing to honor Section 8 vouchers. The motion for preliminary injunction filed
in San Francisco Superior Court yesterday would require defendants Lem-Ray Properties, an
affiliate of the once-high-flying Lembi real estate empire, and broker Chuck Post to immediately
stop their unfair and illegal conduct and comply with the law.
“Housing vouchers are an essential tool for many San Franciscans to access affordable housing—
especially in crisis like the one we are currently experiencing,” said Herrera. “Lem-Ray Properties
and their real estate broker’s refusal to rent to tenants who rely on these vouchers discriminates
against low-income communities. It’s a terrible injustice at a time when city leaders are struggling
desperately to preserve San Francisco’s economic, social and cultural diversity.”
The requested injunction follows a March 22 ruling by Judge Ronald E. Quidachay that denied the
defendants’ bid to dismiss Herrera’s suit. The ruling affirmed San Francisco’s local law that
prohibits landlords from refusing to rent to tenants who intend to use federal housing vouchers.
Section 8 vouchers—so named for Section 8 of the Federal Housing Act, and also known as the
Housing Choice Voucher Program—are administered locally by the San Francisco Housing
Authority. The program allows low-income families to secure housing in the private rental market
by requiring qualifying renters to pay thirty percent of their income toward rent, with Section 8
vouchers covering the remainder. The vouchers impose no additional costs on landlords, and
landlords’ refusal to accept them violates local law.

[MORE]
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Lem-Ray is among the entities associated with the Lembi family’s once expansive CitiApartmentsSkyline Realty empire, which Herrera sued in 2006 for an array of lawless business and tenant
harassment practices involving at least 30 properties. The defendant, which is still subject to the
2011 civil injunction Herrera secured in his five-year litigation battle, is among the landlords
memorably dubbed “the Scumlords” in an award-winning 2006 exposé by investigative reporter
G.W. Schulz. Schulz won first-place honors from the California Newspaper Publishers Association
in 2007 for his San Francisco Bay Guardian series on tenant mistreatment by the Lembis, who at the
time were among the largest residential property owners in the city. Chuck Post, also named in
Herrera’s civil suit, is a real estate broker whose ApartmentsinSF.com website and other online
rental postings brazenly flouted local law by advertising that Section 8 vouchers would not be
accepted as payment for Lem-Ray’s residential apartments.
Under San Francisco law, property owners and real estate agents are prohibited from refusing to
accept federal, state, or local housing subsidies as a form of rental payment, or to indicate in rental
advertisements that housing subsidies will not be accepted as payment. Post and Lem-Ray are both
alleged to have violated the local law, according to Herrera’s complaint, together with provisions of
the California Unfair Competition Law that prohibit unfair and unlawful business practices.
If successful, Herrera’s lawsuit could secure civil penalties against Lem-Ray Properties of up to
$6,000 for each violation of its 2011 court order, and civil penalties against both defendants of
$2,500 for each violation of the state Unfair Competition Law. Both defendants could also be liable
for three times the amount of a single month’s rent in which the landlords charged for any unit in
violation of the Police Code provision. Herrera is also seeking a permanent injunction against both
parties to bar them from business practices in violation of state or local law.
The case is: City and County of San Francisco and People of the State of California v. Chuck M. Post,
Lem-Ray Properties I DE, LLC et al., San Francisco Superior Court Case No. 548551, filed Oct. 21,
2015.
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TO ALL PARTIES AND THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:
2

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on May 12, 2016 at 9:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter can be

3

heard, in Department 501 of this Court, located at 400 McAllister Street, San Francisco, California,

4

94102, Plaintiffs the CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO and the PEOPLE OF THE

5

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ex rel. Dennis Herrera, San Francisco City Attorney ("Plaintiffs"), will and

6

hereby do move this Court for a Preliminary Injunction enjoining Defendants CHUCK M. POST,

7

individually and d/b/a APARTMENTSINSF.COM, and LEM-RAY PROPERTIES I DE, LLC, until

8

the end of trial in this action from interrupting, tenninating, or failing or refusing to initiate or conduct

9

any transaction in real property, including but not limited to the rental thereof, wholly or in part

1O because an individual intends to utilize a rental assistance program, homeless assistance program,
11

security deposit assistance program or housing subsidy program for whole or partial payment of said

12

transaction.

13

This Motion is and will be based on this Notice of Motion and Motion for Preliminary

14

Injunction; the accompanying Memorandum of Points and Authorities in support thereof; the

15

accompanying Request for Judicial Notice; the accompanying declarations of Bradley A. Russi, Cheri

16

Toney and Barbara Smith; the files and records of this Court; and such other pleadings, evidence and

17

argument as may be submitted to the Court before or at the hearing.

18
19
20
21

Dated: April 15, 2016
By: Isl Sara J. Eisenberg
SARA J. EISENBERG
Attorneys for Plaintiff
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
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INTRODUCTION

2

San Francisco today faces an affordable housing crisis. After years of skyrocketing rental

3

prices and exceptionally low vacancy rates, the City and County of San Francisco ("San Francisco" or

4

the "City") has one of the tightest and most expensive rental housing markets in the country. As a

5

result, the City has become increasingly unaffordable and inaccessible for many long-time residents

6

and low-wage working families. The current lack of housing options threatens not only the City's

7

unique socio-economic diversity, but also its ability to provide access to economically thriving

8

communities and housing choices free from discrimination to all residents.

9

As part of San Francisco's past efforts to ensure the availability of affordable housing, the City

1O has enacted a number of measures aimed at making it easier for low-income residents to find and keep
11

housing. One such measure bars landlords from refusing to rent to recipients of government

12

sponsored rental assistance like Section 8 vouchers. Defendants Lem-Ray Properties I DE, LLC

13

("Lem-Ray") and Chuck Post ("Post") (collectively, "Defendants") flagrantly violate San Francisco

14

law by refusing to accept Section 8 vouchers as rental payment at two residential buildings in San

15

Francisco.

16

The City and County of San Francisco and the City Attorney, acting on behalf of the People of

17

the State of California ("Plaintiffs"), brought suit to compel Defendants to follow the law and to hold

18

them responsible for their past violations. Plaintiffs allege that Lem-Ray and Post violated San

19

Francisco Police Code section 3304 ("Section 3304") and California's Unfair Competition Law

20

("UCL"), Business and Professions Code section 17200, et seq, by flatly refusing to rent to

21

prospective tenants who would use Section 8 vouchers as rental payment. Defendants filed a demurrer

22

seeking a judicial declaration that San Francisco's law is preempted by state law, the California Fair

23

Housing and Employment Act. This Court disagreed and overruled Defendants' demurrer.

24

Accordingly, Plaintiffs now request that the Court enter a preliminary injunction barring Defendants

25

from continuing to violate the law.

26

Plaintiffs easily meet the standard for preliminary injunctive relief. Given Defendants' express

27

statements that they will not rent to prospective tenants who intend to pay rent with Section 8 vouchers

28

and this Court's mling upholding the validity of San Francisco's law, Plaintiffs have a high likelihood
l
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of success on the merits of their claim. And where, as here, a public entity "establishes that it is
2

reasonably probable it will prevail on the merits, a rebuttable presumption arises that the potential

3

hann to the public outweighs the potential harm to the defendant." IT Corp. v. County of Imperial, 35

4

Cal. 3d 63, 72 (1983). But even absent this presumption, because prospeetive tenants, law-abiding

5

competitors, and the City will continue to suffer significant and irreparable harm in the absence of

6

interim relief, the balance of hardships would favor immediate relief. The Court should grant this

7

motion and preliminarily enjoin Defendants from continuing to flout the law.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

8
9
1O

San Francisco Source of Income Protection.
The Housing Choice Voucher program (also known as "Section 8") is a partnership between

11

the federal Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") and local Public Housing

12

Authorities ("PHAs") aimed at assisting low income families find affordable housing. 24 C.F.R.

13

§ 982.1. "HUD pays rental subsidies [to PHAs] so eligible families can afford decent, safe, and

14

sanitary housing." Id. The PHA grants a voucher to a qualifying individual, who selects a unit, and

15

"[i]f the PHA approves a family's unit and tenancy, the PHA contracts with the owner to make rent

16

subsidy payments on behalf of the family." Id. The San Francisco Housing Authority ("SFHA") is

17

the PHA for the City and County of San Francisco.

18

In 1998, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors amended Section 3304 of the Police Code to

19

make it unlawful for property owners and real estate agents to refuse to rent to tenants on the basis of

20

the tenants' use of government-sponsored housing subsidies like Section 8 vouchers as a form of

21

payment. See S.F. Police Code § 3304(a). Section 3304 also prohibits advertisements stating that

22

housing subsidies will not be accepted as rental payment or that recipients of housing subsidies are

23

ineligible for tenancy. Id.

24

When San Francisco considered the amendment to Section 3304, the SFHA estimated that 34%

25

of first time Section 8 voucher holders left San Francisco to locate housing in other jurisdictions due to

26

the lack of affordable housing in San Francisco. See Request for Judicial Notice in Support of

27

Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary Injunction ("RJN") Exh. A. The primary purposes of the source of

28

income provision of the ordinance was to increase the available housing options for low income
2
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renters who qualify for housing subsidies, because the tight rental market in San Francisco made it
2

difficult for them to locate suitable housing. See id. at Legislative Analysis p. 4.

3

Defendants Refuse to Accept Section 8 Vouchers.

4

Despite the clear and express terms of Section 3304, Defendants Lem-Ray and Chuck Post

5

have a business practice of refusing to accept Section 8 vouchers as rental payment for residential

6

units in San Francisco. Lem-Ray owns residential buildings at 935 Geary Street and 81 Ninth Street in

7

San Francisco. See RJN Exh. B (Property Records). Chuck Post is a real estate agent who leases

8

apartments at 935 Geary Street and 81 Ninth Street. See Declaration of Cheri Toney in Support of

9

Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary Injunction ("Toney Deel.") ifif3-4, 6-7; Declaration of Bradley A.

1O Russi in Support of Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary Injunction ("Russi Deel.") Exhs. A-E.
11

Lem-Ray will not accept Section 8 vouchers as rental payment for units at 935 Geary Street

12

and 81 9th Street. Toney Deel. ifif2-5, 7. Chuck Post has stated to persons inquiring regarding vacant

13

apartments in both buildings that Section 8 vouchers are not an acceptable form of payment. Toney

14

Deel. ifif4, 7. In the past, advertisements for vacant apartments at both buildings posted on

15

craigslist.org expressly stated "No Section 8 or Subsidy Vouchers Accepted." See Russi Deel. Exhs.

16

C-E. The craigslist ads directed interested individuals to text or ca11 Chuck Post. Id. Similar

17

advertisements were posted on apartmentsinsf.com, a website that previously purported to be the

18

website of Chuck Post. Russi Deel. Exhs. A-B. 1

19

Notably, this is not the first time that Lem-Ray has run afoul oflocal housing laws. In 2006,

20

San Francisco brought a suit on behalf of the People against Defendant Lem-Ray, alleging an array of

21

unlawful business and tenant harassment practices, including the systematic and unlawful

22

dispossession of long-term tenants of rent-controlled apartments in violation of state and local law.

23

See City and County of San Francisco, et al. v. Skyline Realty Inc., et al., No. CGC-06-455241 (S.F.

24

Sup. Ct., Aug. 16, 2006). As a result of the 2006 lawsuit, Defendant Lem-Ray was ordered subject to

25

the terms of a stipulated injunction, which was entered by San Francisco Superior Court Judge John E.

26
27
28

1
Listings at the two buildings now appear to be handled through 49 Square Realty Group, Inc.
("49 Square"). Toney Deel. if8. According to 49 Square's website, Chuck Post has been a broker at
the company since 2009. Id. if8. Notably, 49 Square states that it is located at 933 Geary Street (id.
if8), which is also the address for the registered agent for service of process for Lem-Ray. Id. if9.
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Munter on March 29, 2011 Russi Deel. Exh. Fat Stipulated Injunction. The injunction enjoins and
2

restrains Lem-Ray from operating its properties in such a manner as to constitute "an unfair and/or

3

unlawful business act or practice as described by California Business and Professions Code Section

4

17200-1721 O," and in such a manner as to constitute "violations of any provision of municipal or state

5

law." Id. at pp. 15-16.

6

Plaintiffs' Claims

7

Plaintiffs allege five separate causes of action: ( 1) a cause of action against Post for violating

8

Section 3304's source of income provision; (2) a cause of action against Lem-Ray for violating

9

Section 3304' s source of income provision; (3) a cause of action against Post for violations of Section

10

17200 of the Business and Professions Code predicated on violations of Section 3304; (4) a cause of

11

action against Lem-Ray for violations of Section 17200 predicated on violations of Section 3304; and

12

(5) a cause of action against Lem-Ray for engaging in unfair business practices predicated on violating

13

the 2006 stipulated injunction. Russi Deel. Exh. Fat pp. 8-12.
Defendants filed a demurrer contending that Section 3304's source of income provision is

14
15

preempted by the California Fair Housing and Employment Act. On March 22, 2016, the Court

16

overruled the demurrer.

ARGUMENT

17

When deciding whether to grant a preliminary injunction, a court must consider two

18
19

interrelated factors: (1) the likelihood that the plaintiff will succeed on the merits, and (2) the relative

20

interim harm to the parties from the issuance or nonissuance of the injunction. See, e.g., Butt v. State

21

of California, 4 Cal. 4th 668, 677-78 ( 1992). Plaintiffs easily satisfy both prongs of this standard.

22

I.

23

PLAINTIFFS ARE LIKELY TO SUCCEED ON THE MERITS.
Section 3304 prohibits any individual from refusing to rent to a potential tenant because the

24

tenant intends to pay with government sponsored rental assistance, such as a Section 8 voucher. See

25

S.F. Police Code § 3304. And it is indisputable that both Lem-Ray and Post have repeatedly and

26

overtly violated this law by refusing to rent apartments to Section 8 voucher holders. As discussed

27

above, they have expressly stated this blanket policy in advertisements and to individuals interested in

28

renting apartments at 935 Geary Street and 81 Ninth Street. Seep. 3, supra; Toney Deel. i!i!2-7; Russi
4
Plaintiffs' MPA in Support of Mot. for Preliminary Injunction

Case No. CGC-13-533693

Deel. Exhs. A-E. For example, an investigator from the City Attorney's Office visited 935 Geary
2

Street on September 24, 2015, and was told to call Chuck Post about apartment availability. Toney

3

Deel. i!6. When the investigator called Mr. Post, he indicated that there were two apartments available

4

but stated "no, we do not [accept Section 8.]. Sorry." Id. i!7.

5

Although Defendants may have believed that their refusal to accept Section 8 vouchers was

6

permitted under state law, now that this Court has rejected Defendants' assertion that state law

7

preempts Section 3304, there can be little doubt that Plaintiffs will succeed on the merits of their

8

claims. 2

9

II.

1O

THE BALANCE OF HARDSHIPS TIPS SHARPLY IN PLAINTIFFS' FAVOR.

Where a governmental entity seeks to enjoin the violation of a statute that authorizes injunctive

11

relief, "the second traditional factor of weighing the relative harm to the parties usually does not

12

apply." People ex rel. Brown v. Black Hawk Tobacco, Inc., 197 Cal. App. 4th 1561, 1571 (2011).

13

Instead, if the entity "establishes that it is reasonably probable it will prevail on the merits, a rebuttable

14

presumption arises that the potential harm to the public outweighs the potential harm to the

15

defendant." IT Corp. v. County of Imperial, 35 Cal. 3d 63, 72 (1983). Only "[i]fthe defendant shows

16

that it would suffer grave or irreparable harm from the issuance of the preliminary injunction, [must]

17

the eourt ... then examine the relative harm to the parties." Id. And, notably, even "substantial

18

economic loss of ... revenues" is insufficient to constitute such "grave or irreparable harm" to a

19

defendant. Id. at 75.

20
21

Because Plaintiffs have established more than a reasonable probability that they will prevail on
their claim, the presumption applies. And this presumption is dispositive here because Defendants

22
2

23
24
25
26
27
28

Plaintiffs only need to show a likelihood of success on a single cause of action that would
support the requested injunctive relief. See Huong Que, Inc. v. Luu, 150 Cal. App. 4th 400, 408
(2007). Nonetheless, Plaintiffs are likely to succeed on both their direct Section 3304 claims (First
and Second Causes of Action) and their UCL claims predicated on violations of Section 3304 (Third
and Fourth Causes of Action). The UCL prohibits "unfair competition," which means "any unlawful,
unfair, or fraudulent business act or practice." Bus. & Prof. Code§ 17200. Unlawful practices
include those "forbidden by law, be it civil or criminal, federal, state, or municipal, statutory or
regulatory, or court-made." Saunders v. Superior Court, 27 Cal. App. 4th 832, 838-39 (1994). In other
words, the "unlawful" prong "borrows violations of other laws" and treats them as "practices
independently actionable under section 17200." Farmers Ins. Exch. v. Superior Court, 2 Cal. 4th 377,
383 (1992) (quotations omitted). Because Defendants' open refusal to do business with Section 8
voucher holders violates Section 3304, it also constitutes unlawful conduct under the UCL.
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will suffer no harm-let alone "grave or irreparable harm"-:from an order enjoining their unfair and
2
3

illegal conduct and requiring them to comply with the law.
Even without the presumption, however, there is more than enough evidence to support the

4

injunctive relief the Plaintiffs seek. Indeed, the harms resulting from nonissuance of an injunction are

5

substantial, lasting, and of unique local concern to San Francisco. Defendants have adopted-and are

6

communicating to all prospective tenants-an unfair and illegal practice of refusing to even consider

7

the rental applications of otherwise qualified families, for the simple reason that those families

8

participate in a rental subsidy program that is critical to San Francisco's efforts to provide affordable

9

housing to its residents. This is a serious concern for the administration of the Section 8 program, for

1O prospective tenants and for the City.
11

Where federally-funded housing vouchers are accessible to renters, they can reduce

12

homelessness and other hardships, help lift families out of poverty by capping rental costs to thirty

13

percent of household income, and allow low-income families to secure otherwise unaffordable housing

14

in the private-rental market. By providing qualifying families access to market-rate housing in

15

locations of their choice, housing vouchers can allow families to locate close to jobs, schools, and

16

services, and also promote greater diversity in San Francisco communities.

17

By contrast, when a prospective tenant is turned away from already-limited affordable housing

18

opportunities by a landlord who refuses to accept Section 8, her chances of finding and keeping

19

housing in San Francisco are narrowed. In fiscal year 2015, the San Francisco Housing Authority

20

issued 473 vouchers to allow individuals to move. Declaration of Barbara Smith in Support of

21

Plaintiffs' Motion for Preliminary Injunction ("Smith Deel.") if4. Of those 473 vouchers, only 39%

22

were successfully leased up in San Francisco. Nine percent (9%) of the vouchers were successfully

23

ported out of San Francisco (i.e., leased up outside of the City and County of San Francisco) and the

24

remaining 52% of the vouchers issued expired before a move could occur. Id. Although there are

25

many reasons that an individual may be unable to lease up a voucher, in the experience of the SFHA,

26

landlords' refusal to rent to section 8 tenants is a significant contributing factor to voucher holders'

27

inability to utilize their vouchers in San Francisco. Id. if5. Indeed, voucher holders commonly report

28

to SFHA employees that they are having difficulty leasing up their voucher because landlords refuse to
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accept them. Id. if6.

2

Moreover, Defendants' indications to the public that Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers will

3

not be accepted as payment for rental units incorrectly-and illegally-indicates to prospective tenants

4

that it is permissible for a landlord to reject payment by Section 8 voucher. This misinfonnation has

5

the likely effect ofleading prospective tenants and other landlords to believe this is a legal practice in

6

San Francisco. And in a competitive rental market, Defendants' practice of openly flouting City

7

housing regulations provides an unfair competitive advantage to the lawbreaker and threatens to create

8

an environment where other landlords similarly disregard the law.

9

All of these effects directly undermine the City's efforts to expand housing choices for its

10

residents and ensure that San Francisco is a diverse and welcoming place for people of all

11

backgrounds and income levels. Left unaddressed, the lack of housing options threatens not only the

12

City's unique socio-economic diversity-but also its ability to provide access to economically thriving

13

communities and housing choices to all residents. Over the longer-term, these inequalities impede

14

economic mobility and ultimately threaten the City's ability to host the workforce and job

15

opportunities that are necessary to support a flourishing local economy.

CONCLUSION

16
17
18
19
20

For the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs' motion should be granted.
Dated: April 15, 2016
By: Isl Sara J. Eisenberg
SARA J. EISENBERG
Attorneys for Plaintiff
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
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1
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Case No. CGC-15-548551

1

I, Cheri Toney, declare as follows:

2

1.

I am an investigator with the San Francisco City Attorney's Office. I have personal

3

knowledge of the contents of this declaration, except where indicated otherwise, and I could and

4

would testify competently thereto if called upon to do so.

5

2.

On December 23, 2014, I went to 81 Ninth Street in San Francisco. On the callbox

6

located outside the entrance to the building, I dialed the number indicated for "Manager." A male

7

voice answered. I asked whether there were available apartments. He directed me to consult

8

apartmentsinsf.com for vacancies. I asked him whether they accept Section 8 vouchers. He said, "Not

9

to my knowledge." He stated that his name was Matt.

10

3.

On December 23, 2014, I went to 935 Geary Street in San Francisco. There is an office

11

visible from the street. A man working in the office buzzed me inside. I asked if there were any

12

rooms available. He said, "Apartments with a year lease." He stated that some apartments may be

13

coming available. He told me to call Chuck Post and gave me a business card for Mr. Post. I asked

14

whether they accept Section 8 vouchers. He shook his head in the negative and said, "No, sorry." He

15

told him his name was Jim.

16

4.

On the business card that Jim gave me, "ApartmentslnSF.com" is listed above Mr.

17

Post's name. The email address for Mr. Post is CP@apartmentsinsf.com, and the phone number is

18

415-710-6860. On December 26, 2014, I called Chuck Post at the number listed on the business card.

19

A man answered by saying, "Chuck Post." I asked whether I could use a Section 8 voucher to rent

20

apartments listed on apartmentsinsf.com. He stated, "No, unfortunately not. The owner does not

21

accept it." I asked, "Not for any of your apartments?" He responded, "No, sorry."

22

5.

On September 24, 2015, I again visited 81 Ninth Street. I called the number listed for

23

the manager on the call box. A male answered: I asked whether there were apartments available. He

24

said, "Not right now." I asked whether they accept Section 8 vouchers. He said "I don't know, but I

25

don't think so." He stated that his name was Matt.

26

6.

On September 24, 2015, I again visited 935 Geary Street. The office that I had entered

27

on my prior visit was now vacant. I asked a young man sweeping the sidewalk outside the building if

28

he was the manager. He said he was not the manager, but he buzzed me inside and told me to follow a
2
Toney Deel. ISO Motion for Preliminary Injunction

Case No. CGC-15-548551

1

hallway all the way to the back of the building. I reached a small office, where I found the same man

2

who had identified himself as Jim the last time I came to the building. I asked him if there were any

3

available apartments. He said to call Chuck Post and gave me Mr. Post's business card again.

4

7.

Later on September 24, 2015, I called Chuck Post at the number listed on his business

5

card. A man answered and indicated that he was Chuck Post. I asked whether there were any

6

apartments available at 935 Geary Street. Mr. Post stated that there were two apartments available. I

7

asked whether they would accept Section 8 vouchers. He said, "No, I'm sorry. We do not." I asked

8

again, "You don't?" Mr. Post responded, "No, we do not. Sorry."

9

8.

On April 13, 2016, I visited the website http://www.49squarerealtygroup.com/, which is

10

the website for a property management and real estate firm called 49 Square Realty Group, Inc. Under

11

the vacancy section of the site, there were three available apartments at 935 Geary Street and one

12

available apartment at 81 Ninth Street. Under the "About Us/Our Staff' link of the site, Chuck Post is

13

identified as having worked with 49 Square Realty Group as a leasing agent since 2009. The site also

14

indicates that the physical address for 49 Square Realty Group, fuc. is 933 Geary Street in San

15

Francisco.

16

9.

On April 13, 2016, I visited the California Secretary of State's website and ran a

17

business search for Lem-Ray Properties I DE, LLC. The address listed for service of process for Lem-

18

Ray Properties I DE, LLC is 933 Geary Street in San Francisco.

19

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is

20

true and correct of my own personal knowledge, except where ind.~ic~a~,.u.LJ~

21

declaration was executed on April 13, 2016, at San F

"__-----=::=---.:-----
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Not set

18
19
20
21

CHUCK M. POST, individually and d/b/a
APARTMENTSINSF.COM; LEM-RAY
PROPERTIES I DE, LLC; and DOE ONE
through DOE FIFTY,
Defendants.
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l

I, Bradley A. Russi, declare as follows:

2

l.

I am a Deputy City Attorney with the San Francisco City Attorney's Office. I have

3

personal knowledge of the contents of this declaration, except where indicated otherwise, and I could

4

and would testify competently thereto if called upon to do so.

5

2.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true and correct copy of an advertisement for a vacant

6

efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street that I printed from apartmentsinsf.com on February

7

17, 2014.

8

3.

9
10

single room apartment at 935 Geary Street that I printed from apartmentsinsf.com on February 17.
2014.

11
12

4.

Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a true and correct copy of an advertisement for an
efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street that I printed from craigslist.org on February 17, 2014.

15
16

6.

19

Attached hereto as Exhibit E is a true and correct copy of an advertisement for a studio

apartment at 81 Ninth Street that I printed from craigstlist.org on February 17, 2014.

17
18

Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a true and correct copy of an advertisement for a vacant

single room apartment at 935 Geary Street that I printed from craigslist.org on February 13, 2014.

13
14

Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a true and correct copy of an advertisement for a vacant

7.

Attached hereto as Exhibit F is a true and correct copy of the Complaint filed in this

action.
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is

20

true and correct of my own personal knowledge, except where indicated otherwise, and that this

21

declaration was executed on April 13, 2016, at San Francisco, California.

22
23

Bradley A. Russi

24

25
26
27

28
Russi Deel. ISO Motion for Preliminary Injunction

EXHIBIT A

High Floor. Great Views. Corner unit. Efficiency Studio : Apartments in SF

Page 1 of2

High Floor. Great Views. Corner unit. Efficiency Studio - 935 Geary, San Francisco, CA

Features
@ce: $1350/mo

(f;ttng Type: Efficiency Studio

@>perty Type: Rental Apartment

Photo Gallery - and Property Description
~-~.

,_,

Nice EFFICIENCY Studio Apartment.
On a High Floor with great Views and Sunlight.

There is NO KITCHEN or Stove. This Is an Efficiency Studio. But It has a Refig and Micro, but no stove.
Private bathroom thafs clean and just been updated
Full time building manager.
Coin-operated laundry on premises.
LANDLORD PAYS ALL UTILITIES (Heat, water, Garbage, and PG&E)
Tenants pay Cable/Internet if desired.
12 Month Lease.
Sonry NO PETS allowed
Students & International OK with Double Deposit
Sony, but No Section 8 or Subsidy Vouchers Accepted

SINGLE PERSON OCCUPANCY ONLY

http://apartmentsinsf.com/high-floor-great-views-corner-unit-efficiency-studio/

2/17/2014

High Floor. Great Views. Comer unit. Efficiency Studio : Apartments in SF

Page~

of2

Available IMMEDIATELY.
If adv is still up, then the apt is still available
935 Geary at Polk
$35 Application Fee per tenant.

http://apartmentsinsf.com/high-floor-great-views-comer-unit-efficiency-studio/

2/17/2014

EXHIBITB

Renovated Single Room Apt w/ Private Bathroom : Apartments in SF

Page 1of2

Renovated Single Room Apt w/ Private Bathroom - 935 Geary, San Francisco, CA

Features
@ce: $1195/mo
~ting Type: Efficiency Studio

@>party Type: Rental Apartment

Photo Gallery and Property Description
Nice EFFICIENCY Studio Apartment.

There is NO KITCH EN or Stove. but you can bring In a small refig or microwave.

It has a private bathroom with tub/shower.
LANDLORD PAYS ALL UTILITIES (Heat, Water, Garbage, and PG&E)
Tenants pay Cablenntemet if desired.
Full lime building manager.
Coin-operated laundry on premises.
12 Month Lease.
Sorry NO PETS allowed
Students & International OK with Double Deposit
Sorry, but No Section 8 or Subsidy Vouchers Accepted

SINGLE PERSON OCCUPANCY ONLY
Available IMMEDIATELY.
If adv is still up, then the apt is still available
935 Geary at Polk
$35 Application Fee per tenant.

http://apartmentsinsf.com/renovated-single-room-apt-w-private-bathroom/

2/17/2014

Renovated Single Room Apt w/ Private Bathroom : Apartments in SF

Page 2 of2
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http://apartmentsinsf.com/renovated-single-room-apt-w-private-bathroom/

2/17/2014

EXHIBITC

Nice! Renovated Single Room w/ Private Bath.

Page 1 of2

CL >SF bay area > san francisco >all housing > apts/housing for rent

$1195 Nice! Renovated Single Room w/ Private Bath. (downtown I civic I van ness)

(OBRTffia] ~rtment)
(laundry in

iili!hl tstreet earking 1

Nice EFFICIENCY Studio Apartment
There is NO KITCHEN or Stove. but you can bring in a small refig or microwave.
It has a private bathroom with tub/shower.
LANDLORD PAYS ALL UTILITIES (Heat., Water, Garbage, and PG&E)
Tenants pay Cable/Internet if desired.
Full time building manager.
Coin-operated laundry on premises.
12 Month Lease.
Sorry NO PETS allowed
Students & International OK with Double Deposit
Sorry, but No Section 8 or Subsidy Vouchers Accepted
SINGLE PERSON OCCUPANCY ONLY
Available IMMEDIATELY.
If adv is still up, then the apt is still available
935 Geary at Polk
$35 Application Fee per tenant
Text is best, or call Chuck Post 415 710 6860 dre# 01421132
I am a leasing agent for about 100 buildings in SF. Totally free service to tenants, (I get paid by the landlords). See all of my listings and fill out
online applications at
www.ApartmentslnSF.com
935Geary~~

• do NOT contact me with unsolicited services or offers
post id; 4292642363

posted:

n..

<!!!i'~.'!80,

updated: 2.-~~.!'8.0

email to friend

http://sfbay.craigslist.org/sfc/apa/4292642363.html

\f

best of

2/13/2014

Nice! Renovated Single Room w/ Private Bath.

Page 2 of2

Please flag d1scrimmato1Y housimz ads
Avoid scams deal locallv'DO NOT wire funds (e.g. Western Union), or buy/rent sight unseen

© 2014 craigslist !:@!Q

safety~

http://sfbay.craigslist.org/sfc/apa/4292642363.html

feedback cl jobs terms about mobile

2113/2014

EXHIBITD

Page I of2

Nice! Renovated Efficiency Studio. OPEN Sun. 3p
CL >SF bay area > san francisco >all housing > apts/housing for rent

$1250 Nice! Renovated Efficiency Studio. OPEN Sun. 3p (downtown I civic I van ness)
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935 Geary

@BRTIBal ~rtment l
(laund~J~E~ s-tree_t_p-~rk..,...J-~-91
Ir-,

OPEN Sunday 2/16 from 3:00-3:20. TIDS IS A 20 MINUTE SHOWING. PLEASE BE PROMPT. Thank you. If you can't make it during the
Open House, please te~t me to schedule another time to see it. Thanks.
Nice EFFICIENCY Studio Apartment
There is NO KITCHEN or Stove. This is an Efficiency Studio. Has a Refig and Micro, but no stove.
Full time building manager.
Coin-operated laundry on premises.
LANDLORD PAYS ALL UTILillES (Heat, Water, Garbage, and PG&E)
Tenants pay Cable/Internet if desired.
12 Month Lease.
Sony NO PETS allowed
Students & International OK with Double Deposit
Sony, but No Section 8 or Subsidy Vouchers Accepted
SINGLE PERSON OCCUPANCY ONLY
Available IMMEDIATELY.
If adv is still up, then the apt is still available

935 Geary at Pollc
$35 Application Fee per tenant.
Text is best, or call Chuck Post 415 710 6860 dre# 01421132
I am a leasing agent for about 100 buildings in SF. (Totally free service to tenants, I get paid by the landlords;). See all of my listings and fill out
online applications at
www.ApartmentslnSF.com
935Geary~~

• do NOT contact me with unsolicited services or offers

http://sfbay.craigslist.org/sfc/apa/4335411300.html

2/17/2014

Nice! Renovated Efficiency Studio. OPEN Sun. 3p
post id: 4335411300

posted: a,day BJ!()

updated: 11d,ay_aj!O

email to friend

Page 2 of2

V best of

Please flag discriminatorv housing ads
Avoid scams. deal locallv !DO NOT wire funds (e,g, Western Union), or buy/rent sight unseen

© 2014 craigslist .!lfilQ safety

http://sfbay.craigslist.org/sfc/apa/4335411300.html
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EXHIBITE

Just Renovated Studio. Across St from Twitter. OPEN SUN 2pm

Page 1 of2

CL >SF bay area > san francisco >all housing > apts/housing for rent

$1425 Just Renovated Studio. Across St from Twitter. OPEN SUN 2pm (downtown I civic I van
ness)

C cra~slist - Map data C Opei\Str

81 9th Street at Mission

rosR71Bal [a"Partmentl
Ilaundry on sit~ Istreet parkingJ

Open House on Sunday 2/16 at 2:00
Smaller but nice Studio Apartment.
Just Renovated.
Across Street from New Twitter Bldg!
Updated Kitchen
Updated Bathroom with shower stall (no tub)
Main room is small. About 9xl I.
Faces interior courtyard so its quiet, but it gets good light- just no view.
LANDLORD PAYS ALL UTILITIES (Heat, Water, Garbage, and PG&E)
Tenants pay Cable/Internet if desired.
12 Month Lease.
Full time building manager.
Coin-operated laundry on premises.
Cats OK (with additional deposit $300) but, sorry, no dogs allowed.
Students & International OK with Double Deposit
Sorry, but No Section 8 or Subsidy Vouchers Accepted
81 9th Street at Mission.
$35 Application Fee per tenant.
Available IMMEDIATELY.
If adv is still up, then the apt is still available
Text is best, or call Chuck Post 415 710 6860 dre# 01421132
I am a leasing agent for about 100 buildings in SF. (Totally free service to tenants, I get paid by the landlords; ). See all of my listings and fill out
online applications at www.ApartmentslnSF.com
81 9th Street at Mission~~

http://stbay.craigslist.org/sfc/apa/4335929434.html

2/17/2014

Just Renovated Studio. Across St from Twitter. OPEN SUN 2pm

Page 2 of2

• cats are OK - purrr
• do NOT contact me with unsolicited services or offers
post id: 4335929434

posted: ll:.~~J!C>,

email to friend

'I'

best of

Please flag di,criminatorv housing ads
Avoid scams. deal locallv•DO NOT wire funds (e.g. Western Union), or buy/rent sight unseen
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DENNIS J. HERRERA, State Bar#139669
City Attorney
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YVONNE R. MERE, State Bar #173594
Complex & Affirmative Litigation Team Leader
BRADLEY A. RUSSI, State Bar #256993
SARA J. EISENBERG, State Bar#269303
Deputy City Attorneys
1390 Market Street, 7th Floor
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Telephone:
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Facsimile:
(415} 554-3985
E-Mail:
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E-Mail:
brad.russi@sfgov.org
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO AND
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

10

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

11

COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

12

UNLIMITED JURISDICTION

13
14
15

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN
FRANCISCO, a Municipal Corporation, and
thePEOPLEOFTHESTATEOF
CALIFORNIA, by and through DENNIS J.
HERRERA, City Attorney for the City and
County of San Francisco,

Case No.
COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER
RELIEF

16
Plaintiffs,
ATTACHMENTS: Exhibit A

17
vs.

18
19
20
21

CHUCK M. POST, individually and d/b/a
APARTMENTSINSF.COM; LEM-RAY
PROPERTIES I DE, LLC; and DOE ONE
through DOE FIFTY,
Defendants.

22
Plaintiffs, the City and County
24

acting by and through San Francisco City Attorney Dennis Herrera, hereby allege as follows:

INTRODUCTION

25

26

San Francisco and the People of the State of California,

1.

The City and County of San Francisco ("San Francisco'? or the ~'City'~) faces one of the

27

tightest rental housing markets in the country, which is plagued by exceptionally low vacancy rates

28

and skyrocketing rental rates.

1

2.

San Francisco lawmakers have implemented a comprehensive scheme of housing

2

regulations, including rent control measures; tenants' rights protections, and the administration of

3

housing subsidies. Critical to the success of these regulatory efforts are federally funded housing

4

vouchers, which are provided by the Housing Choice Voucher Program, also known as Section 8 of

5

the Federal Housing Act. This program is administered locally by the San Francisco Housing

6

Authority. "Section 8 vouchers" allow qualifying low-income families to secure housing in the private

7

rental market. A qualifying family is required to pay thirty percent of its income toward rent, while the

8

voucher covers the remainder of the rental costs.

9

3.

In 1998, San Francisco amended its Police Code Section 3304 to make it unlawful for

1O property owners and real estate agents to refuse to accept federal, state, or local housing subsidies as a
11

form of rental payment, to require different terms for such tenants, or to falsely represent that a rental

12

unit is not available based on a person's use of a housing subsidy. The amendment also made it

13

unlawful for property owners and real estate agents to indicate in housing advertisements that housing

14

subsidies would not be accepted as rental payment or that recipients of housing subsidies would be

15

ineligible for tenancy.

16

4.

Section 3304 remains a critical element of San Francisco's system of housing

17

regulation, helping to protect the ability of Section 8 voucher holders to continue in their tenancies or

18

find housing in San Francisco. The law ensures that landlords and their agents do not discriminate

19

against tenants for paying with Section 8 vouchers, do not advertise that Section 8 tenants are

20

unwelcome, and do not incorrectly state that it is legally permissible to refuse a tenancy based on

21

payment with Section 8 vouchers.

22

5.

Despite the clear and express terms of Section 3304, Defendants Chuck Post and Lem-

23

Ray Properties have a business practice of refusing to accept Section 8 vouchers as rental payment

24

from prospective tenants and have explicitly stated their intention to refuse Section 8 vouchers in

25

property advertisements and through oral representations to persons inquiring as to available rental

26

units. Defendant Chuck Post is a real estate broker who has used Craigslist.org and his website,

27

ApartmentsinSf.com, to post rental advertisements indicating that Section 8 vouchers will not be

28

accepted as payment for advertised units. Defendant Lem-Ray is the owner of some of the properties
2
CCSFv.POST

COMPLAINT

1

that Defendant Chuck Post has marketed as unavailable to Section 8 tenants. As the owner of the

2

rental properties, Defendant Lem-Ray caused its agent, Defendant Chuck Post, to unlawfully

3

disseminate these advertisements. Defendants Lem-Ray and Chuck Post have overtly violated Section

4

3304 through these advertisements and through their business practice of refusing to accept Section 8

5

vouchers as payment for rental units in San Francisco. Defendants have been engaged in this conduct

6

for at least one year and likely much longer.

7

6.

This is not the first time Defendant Lem-Ray has conducted its rental business in

8

blatant disregard of the law, nor is it the first time San Francisco has attempted to hold Defendant

9

Lem-Ray accountable for its unlawful actions. In fact, Defendant Lem-Ray is a serial violator of local

10

and state housing regulations and is currently bound by the terms of a 2011 stipulated injunction,

11

which was entered as a result of Defendant Lem-Ray's prior unlawful activity. In 2006, San Francisco,

12

acting on behalf of the People, brought suit against Defendant Lem-Ray as a result of its unlawful

13

business practices. The suit brought to light a host of local and state housing law violations, including

14

the unlawful dispossession of tenants of rent-controlled housing units.

15

7.

In 2011, as a result of San Francisco's suit, Defendant Lem-Ray was ordered subject to

16

the terms of a stipulated injunction, approved by San Francisco Superior Court Judge John E. Munter.

17

The injunction placed a number of strict limitations on Defendant Lem-Ray's future activity and

18

restrained and enjoined Defendant Lem-Ray from engaging in unlawful and unfair conduct in

19

violation of the Unfair Competition Law ("UCL"), California Business Code Sections 17200-17210.

20

Defendant Lem-Ray was further restrained and enjoined from operating its properties in such a

21

manner as to constitute violations of any local or state law. Defendant Lem-Ray has now run afoul of

22

these terms with the unlawful activity alleged herein.

23

8.

Defendant Lem-Ray's actions and those of its agent, Defendant Chuck Post, violated

24

and continue to violate San Francisco housing law and constitute unlawful, unfair and fraudulent

25

business practices. Defendant Lem-Ray, in particular, has made clear its intent to continue to violate

26

state and local housing regulations, despite the previous court order enjoining its unlawful activity. As

27

a result, it has seriously undermined San Francisco's efforts to ensure the availability of affordable

28

housing for all residents.

3
CCSFv. POST

COMPLAINT

9.

1

This Court should enter an injunction to enjoin these practices and should order

2

Defendants to pay civil penalties for their past acts of unfair competition. With respect to Defendant

3

Lem-Ray, this Court should additionally impose the proscribed penalties for Defendant's willful

4

violation of the previous stipulated injunction.

PARTIES

5
10.

6
7

existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, and is a city and county.

8
9

10

Plaintiff City and County of San Francisco is a municipal corporation organized and

11.

The City brings this action under the provisions of San Francisco Police Code Chapter

12.

Plaintiff the People of the State of California, by and through San Francisco City

33.

11

Attorney Dennis J. Herrera, prosecutes this action pursuant to California Business and Professions

12

Code Section 17200 et seq.

13

13.

Defendant Chuck Post d/b/a ApartmentslnSf.com ("Chuck Post") is a real estate broker

14

licensed by the California Department of Real Estate (License # 01421132), with his principal office

15

in San Francisco, California.

16

14.

Defendant Lem-Ray Properties I DE, LLC ("Lem-Ray") is a Delaware Limited

17

Liability Company that owns several apartment buildings in San Francisco, including the buildings

18

commonly known as 81 Ninth Street and 935 Geary Street.

19

15.

Defendants Doe One through Doe Fifty are sued herein under fictitious names.

20

Plaintiffs do not at this time know the true names or capacities of said defendants, but pray that the

21

same may be inserted herein when ascertained.

22

16.

At all times herein mentioned, each Defendant was an agent, servant, employee,

23

partner, franchisee, joint venturer, and co-conspirator of each other defendant and at all times was

24

acting within the course and scope of said agency, service, employment, partnership, franchise, joint

25

venture, and conspiracy.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

26
27
28

17.

The Superior Court has jurisdiction over this action. Defendants Chuck Post and Lem-

Ray are conducting unlawful, unfair and/or deceptive business practices in California and are acting in

4
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1

violation of the San Francisco Police Code, and the City Attorney has the right arid authority to

2

prosecute these cases on behalf of the City and the People.
18.

3

Venue is proper in this Court because Defendants Chuck Post and Lem-Ray transact

4

business in the City and County of San Francisco ("San Francisco") and because the acts complained

5

of occurred in San Francisco and/or caused injury to citizens of San Francisco.
FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

6
19.

7

Acting on behalf of Defendant Lem-Ray, Defendant Chuck Post, a licensed real estate

8

broker doing business as ApartmentsinSf.com, has advertised that "[n]o Section 8 or [s]ubsidy

9

[v]ouchers [will be] [a]ccepted" as payment for rental units owned by Defendant Lem-Ray at 81 Ninth

10

Street and 935 Geary Street. Advertisements containing this statement featured prominently both on

11

Defendant Chuck Post's website, ApartmentsinSf.com, and on Craigslist.com. Defendant Chuck Post

12

engaged in this practice for at least one year, from May 2013 to May 2014. Defendant Chuck Post has

13

also advertised the refusal to accept Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers in listings for other rental

14

properties, including but not limited to, 1501 Lincoln Way.
20.

15

Defendant Chuck Post's advertisements violate Section 3304 of the San Francisco

16

Police Code. Section 3304(a)(5) prohibits "any person" in San Francisco from advertising or

17

disseminating information with regard to rental transactions in real property in a manner that indicates

18

preferences or discriminates based on source of income. "Source of income" is defined to include "all

19

lawful sources of income or rental assistance from any federal, State, local, or nonprofit-administered

20

benefit or subsidy program," such as Section 8 vouchers. Defendant Chuck Post's advertisements on

21

ApartmentsinSF.com are in clear violation of Section 3304(a)(5).
21.

22

In an advertisement available on ApartmentsinSf.com on May 8, 2013, Defendant

23

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street for $1,250 per month. According

24

to the advertisement, Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would not be accepted as payment for the

25

unit.

26

22.

In an advertisement available on ApartmentsinSf.com on August 21, 2013, Defendant

27

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street for $1,095 per month. According

28

to the advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be accepted as payment for the

5
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1

unit.
23.

2

In an advertisement available on ApartmentsinSf.com on February 17, 2014, Defendant

3

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street for $1, 195 per month. According

4

to the advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be accepted as payment for the

5

unit.

6

24.

In an advertisement available on ApartmentsinSf.com on February 17, 2014, Defendant

7

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street for $1,350 per month. According

8

to the advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be accepted as payment for the

9

unit.

10

25.

In an advertisement available on ApartmentsinSf.com on May 15, 2014, Defendant

11

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street for $1,095 per month. According

12

to the advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be accepted as payment for the

13

unit.
26.

14

In an advertisement available on ApartmentsinSf.com on May 15, 2014, Defendant

15

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street for $1,195 per month. According

16

to the advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be acc~pted as payment for the

17

unit.
27.

18

In an advertisement available on ApartmentsinSf.com on May 15, 2014, Defendant

19

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio apartment at 935 Geary Street for $1,295 per month. According

20

to the advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be accepted as payment for the

21

unit.

22
23
24

28.

Defendant Chuck Post also violated California Police Code Section 3304 through his

use of advertisements on Craigslist.org.
29.

In an advertisement available on stbay.craigslist.org on February 13, 2014, Defendant

25

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio at 935 Geary Street for $1,195 per month. According to the

26

advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be accepted as payment for the unit.

27
28

30.

In an advertisement available on stbay.craigslist.org on February 13, 2014, Defendant

Chuck Post listed an efficiency studio at 935 Geary Street for $1,250 per month. According to the
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1 advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be accepted as payment for the unit.
2

31.

In an advertisement available on sfbay.craigslist.org on February 17, 2014, Defendant

3

Chuck Post advertised a studio apartment at 81 9th Street for $1,425 per month. According to the

4

advertisement, no Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers would be accepted as payment for the unit.

5

32.

As recently as September 2015, Defendant Chuck Post personally stated to an

6

individual inquiring as to available apartments that Section 8 vouchers are not an acceptable form of

7

payment for rental units at 935 Geary Street.

8
9

33.

Defendant Chuck Post's advertisements and personal statement informing the public

that Section 8 or other subsidy vouchers will not be accepted as payment for rental units incorrectly-

10

and illegally-informed prospective tenants that it is permissible for a landlord to reject payment by

11

Section 8 voucher. This misiI:J.formation has the likely effect of leading prospective tenants and other

12

landlords to believe this is a legal practice in San Francisco.

13

34.

Defendant Chuck Post is an agent of Defendant Lem-Ray. Defendant Lem-Ray has

14

violated Section 3304(b)(5) each time it has "cause[d] to be made" Defendant Chuck Post's unlawful

15

advertisements and statements notifying the public that no Section 8 or other subsidies will be

16

accepted as payment for Lem-Ray rental units.

17

35.

Defendant Lem-Ray has a business practice of refusing to accept "Section 8 or subsidy

18

vouchers" as payment for its rental units. This policy violates Section 3304(a)(l) of the San Francisco

19

Police Code. Section 3304(a)(l) prohibits a landlord from using "source of income"-such as Section

20

8 or other subsidies-to discriminate against prospective tenants. Indeed, it is unlawful under Section

21

3304 to "refuse to initiate or conduct any transaction in real property, including but limited to the

22

rental thereof' based· on "source of income." Defendant Lem-Ray's business practice of refusing to

23

accept Section 8 vouchers or other housing subsidies is in clear violation of Section 3304(a)(l).

24

36.

As recently as December 2014, employees and/or agents of Defendant Lem-Ray

25

working at 81 Ninth Street and 935 Geary Street have stated to persons inquiring as to available rental

26

units that Section 8 vouchers are not an acceptable form of payment for rental units in those buildings.

27
28

37.

Defendant Lem-Ray's refusal to accept Section 8 vouchers as rental payment

discourages and wholly prevents Section 8 recipients from commencing the application process for a
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1

rental unit. Removing these units from the pool of available rental housing for Section 8 voucher-

2

holders makes it more difficult for individuals in this vulnerable community to find housing in San

3

Francisco.

4

38.

This is not the first time that Defendant Lem-Ray has faced legal action for violating

5

local and state housing law. In 2006, San Francisco brought a suit on behalf of the People against

6

Defendant Lem-Ray, alleging an array of unlawful business and tenant harassment practices, including

7

the systematic and unlawful dispossession oflong-term tenants of rent-controlled apartments in

8

violation of state and local law.

9

39.

As a result of the 2006 lawsuit, Defendant Lem-Ray was ordered subject to the terms of

10

a stipulated injunction, which was entered by San Francisco Superior Court Judge John E. Munter on

11

March 29, 2011 (the "Injunction"). The Injunction remains in effect. A copy of the Injunction is

12

attached hereto as Exhibit A.

13

40.

The Injunction imposes a number of conditions and restrictions on Defendant Lem-

14

Ray's activities, at least two of which have been violated here. First, Defendant Lem-Ray is restrained

15

and enjoined from operating any of its properties in such a manner as to constitute "an unfair and/or

16

unlawful business act or practice as described by California Business and Professions Code Section

17

17200-171210." Second, Defendant Lem-Ray is restrained and enjoined from operating any of its

18

properties in such a manner as to constitute "violations of any provision of municipal or state law."

19

41.

The Injunction provides that Defendant Lem-Ray's violation of any of its provisions

20

"may constitute contempt of court" and that if the Court determines that the terms have been willfully

21

violated, Defendant Lem-Ray "shall be liable for civil penalties of no less than $2,500 and no more

22

than $6,000 for each violation."

23
24

42.

As alleged herein, Defendant Lem-Ray's violations of local law constitute a flagrant

violation of the Injunction.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
VIOLATION OF SAN FRANCISCO POLICE CODE SECTION 3304

25
26

(By Plaintiff City Against Defendant Chuck Post)

27
43.

The City realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1through42 inclusive.

28
8
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1

44.

As alleged herein, Defendant Chuck Post has violated Section 3304 of the San

2

Francisco Police Code by posting "advertisement[s] with respect to a transaction or proposed

3

transaction in real property ... which unlawfully indicate[] preference, limitation or discrimination

4

based on ... source of income" and by refusing to accept "Section 8 or subsidy vouchers" as payment

5

for rental units that he advertises.

6

45.

Defendant Chuck Post has demonstrated an outright refusal to do business with Section

7

8 voucher holders. Defendant Chuck Post's business practice of refusing to accept Section 8 or other

8

vouchers as rental payment violates Section 3304.

9

46.

Plaintiff City has no adequate remedy at law in that damages are insufficient to protect

1O the public from the present danger and harm caused by the actions described herein. Injunctive relief is

11

therefore appropriate and provided for by Section 3307 of the Police Code.

12

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

13

VIOLATION OF SAN FRANCISCO POLICE CODE SECTION 3304
(By Plaintiff City Against Defendant Lem-Ray)

14
15

47.

The City realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 46 inclusive.

16

48.

As alleged herein, Defendant Lem-Ray has violated Section 3304 of the San Francisco

17

Police Code by posting "advertisement[s] with respect to a transaction or proposed transaction in real

18

property . . . which unlawfully indicate[] preference, limitation or discrimination based on ... source

19

of income" and by refusing to accept "Section 8 or subsidy vouchers" as payment for its rental units.

20

49.

Defendant Lem-Ray has demonstrated an outright refusal to do business with Section 8

21

voucher holders. Defendant Lem-Ray's business practice of refusing to accept Section 8 or other

22

vouchers as rental payment violates Section 3304(a)(l).

23

50.

Plaintiff City has no adequate remedy at law in that damages are insufficient to protect

24

the public from the present danger and harm caused by the actions described herein. Injunctive relief is

25

therefore appropriate and provided for by Section 3307 of the Police Code.

26
27
28
9
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

1

VIOLATION OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTION 17200 et seq.

2

(Plaintiff People of the State of California Against Defendant Chuck Post)

3

51.

The People reallege and incorporate by reference paragraphs 1 through 50 inclusive.

4

52.

The People bring this cause of action in the public interest in the name of the People of

5

the State of California, pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 17200 et seq. in order to

6

protect residents of San Francisco from the unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent business acts and practices

7

committed by Defendant Chuck Post within the City and County of San Francisco; State of California.
53.

8
9

The actions of Defendant Chuck Post are in violation of the laws and public policies of

the City and County of San Francisco and the State of California, and are inimical to the rights and

1O interest of the general public.
54.

11

Defendant Chuck Post is now engaging in and, for a considerable period of time and at

12

all times pertinent to the allegations of this Complaint, has engaged in unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent

13

business acts and practices in violation of Section 17200 et seq. in the following manner:

a.

14

By violating Section 3304(a)(5), which states that it shall be unlawful to "make,

15

print, publish, advertise or disseminate in any way, or cause to be made, printed or published ... any

16

notice, statement or advertisement ... which unlawfully indicates preference, limitation or

17

discrimination based on ... source of income."

b.

18
19

of Section 3304(a)(l);

20
21

22
23
24

By refusing to accept Section 8 or other vouchers as rental payment in violation

c.

By violating the provisions of and public policy animating Police Code.Section

d.

By causing tenants seeking residential apartment housing to believe it is legal

3304;

for a landlord to refuse to accept rental payments made with Section 8 vouchers;

e.

By publicly disseminating misinformation stating and leading members of the

25

public to believe that it is legally permissible for a landlord to refuse to rent to a tenant on the basis of

26

the tenant's payment of rent with a Section 8 voucher or other subsidy.

27
28
CCSFv. POST

COMPLAINT

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

1

VIOLATION OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTION 17200 et seq.

2

(Plaintiff People of the State of California Against Defendant Lem-Ray)

3

55.

The People reallege and incorporate by reference paragraphs 1 through 54 inclusive.

4

56.

The People bring this cause of action in the public interest in the name of the People of

5

the State of California, pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 17200 et seq. in order to

6

protect residents of San Francisco from the unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent acts and practices

7

committed by Defendant Lem-Ray within the City and County of San Francisco, State of Cal.ifornia.
57.

8

9

The actions of Defendant Lem-Ray are in violation of the laws and public policies of

the City and County of San Francisco and the State of California, and are inimical to the rights and

1O interest of the general public.
58.

11

Defendant Lem-Ray is now engaging in and, for a considerable period of time and at all

12

times pertinent to the allegations of this Complaint, has engaged in unlawful, unfair and fraudulent

13

business acts and practices in violation of Section 17200 et seq. in the following manner:

a.

14

By violating Section 3304(a)(5), which states that it shall be unlawful to "make,

15

print, publish, advertise or disseminate in any way, or cause to be made, printed or published ... any

16

notice, statement or advertisement ... which unlawfully indicates preference, limitation or

17

discrimination based on ... source of income."

b.

18
19

of Section 3304(a)(l);

20
21
22

23
24

By refusing to accept Section 8 or other vouchers as rental payment in violation

c.

By violating the provisions of and public policy animating Police Code Section

d.

By causing tenants seeking residential apartment housing to believe it is legal

3304;

for a landlord to refuse to accept rental payments made with Section 8 vouchers;
e.

By publicly disseminating misinformation stating and leading members of the

25

public to believe that it is legally permissible for a landlord to refuse to rent to a tenant on the basis of

26

the tenant's payment of rent with a Section 8 voucher or other subsidy.

27

28
11
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
VIOLATION OF INJUNCTION PROHIBITING UNFAIR COMPETITION

2

(Plaintiff People of the State of California Against Defendant Lem-Ray)

3

59.

The People incorporate by reference paragraphs 1 through 58 inclusive.

4

60.

Defendant Lem-Ray is subject to an injunction prohibiting unfair competition entered

5

pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 17203, as further alleged above. The Injunction

6

restrains and enjoins Lem-Ray from operating any of its properties in such a manner as to constitute

7

"an unfair and/or unlawful business act or practice as described by California Business and

8

Professions Code Section 17200-17210."

9

61.

Defendant Lem-Ray has openly and willfully violated the express terms of the

1O Injunction, which was entered as a result of Defendant Lem-Ray's previous violations of local and
11
12

state housing laws, as well as the UCL.
62.

Defendant Lem-Ray willfully violated this provision of the Injunction when it, through

13

its agent Defendant Chuck Post, advertised that it would not accept Section 8 vouchers as rental

14

payment. This activity qualifies as an indication of "a preference, limitation or discrimination based on

15

... source of income," which is expressly prohibited by San Francisco Police Code, Section 3304.

16

These violations of municipal law constitute unlawful business practices under California Business

17

and Professional Code Section 17200 et seq. and clearly run afoul of the terms of the Injunction.

18

63.

The Injunction further restrains and enjoins Lem-Ray Properties from operating any of

19

its properties in such a manner as to constitute "violations of any provision of municipal or state law."

20

Defendant Lem-Ray willfully violated this provision of the Injunction when it, through its agent

21

Defendant Chuck Post, advertised that it would not accept Section 8 vouchers as rental payment. This

22

activity qualifies as an indication of "a preference, limitation or discrimination based on ... source of

23

income," which is expressly prohibited by San Francisco Police Code Section 3304. These acts

24

constitute violations of municipal law and run afoul of the terms of the Injunction.

25

64.

Defendant Lem-Ray's willful violations of the Injunction constitute a violation of

26

Business and Professions Code Section 17207 and require the imposition of mandatory civil penalties

27

of no less than $2,500 and no more than $6,000 for each violation.

28
12
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

I

Plaintiffs therefore pray that the Court:

2

1.

3
4

to perform any acts in violation of the San Francisco Municipal Code;
2.

5
6

7

Code Sections 17200 through 1721 O;
3.

12

13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Order Defendant Chuck Post and Defendant Lem-Ray to pay $2,500 in civil penalties

for each unlawful or unfair act, pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 17206;
4.

10
11

Enjoin Defendant Chuck Post and Defendant Lem-Ray from performing or proposing

to perform any acts in violation of the Unfair Competition Law, California Business and Professions

8
9

Enjoin Defendant Chuck Post and Defendant Lem-Ray from performing or proposing

Order Defendant Lem-Ray to pay civil penalties of no less than $2,500 and no more

than $6,000 for each violation of the Injunction, pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section
17207;
5.

Order Defendant Chuck Post and Defendant Lem-Ray to pay a penalty in the amount of

three times the amount of one month's rent that the landlord charges for any unit for which Defendants
violated Section 3304 of the Police Code, pursuant to Police Code Section 3306;

6.

Order Defendants to pay punitive damages and the City's reasonable attorneys' fees

and costs, pursuant to Police Code Section 3306;
7.

Order Defendants to pay the costs of suit as otherwise provide by law; and

8.

Provide such further and additional relief as the Court deems proper.

Dated: October 21, 2015
DENNIS J. HERRERA
City Attorney
YVONNE MERE
BRADLEY A. RUSSI
SARA J. EISENBERG
DepJ:l!y City A

21
22
23
24
By:

25

Attorneys for Pli1urbl.ll_../
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND THE
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

26
27

28
13
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EXHIBIT A

ORIGINAL
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

DENNIS J. HERRERA, State Bar #139669
City Attorney
ALEX G. TSE, StateBar#152348
Chief Attorney
,
YVONNE R. MERE, StateBar#I73594
JENNIFER CHOI, State Bar #184058
JILL CANNON, StateBar#203471
Deputy City Attorneys
Fox Plaza
1390 Market Street, Sixth Floor
San Francisco, California 94102-5408
Telephone:
(415) 554-3874
Facsimile:
(415) 437-4644

8
9

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO and
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

10
11

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

12

COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

13

UNLIMITED JURISDICTION

14
15
16

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN
FRANCISCO, a Municipal Corporation, and
the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, by and through DENNIS J.
HERRERA, City Attorney for the City and
County of San Francisco,

Case No. CGC 06-455-241

17
Plaintiffs,

STIPULATED INJUNCTION

18
vs.

19
20
21
22
23
24

SKYLINE REALTY INC.,
CITIAPARTMENTS INC., GAYLORD
HOTEL LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES V
LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES V DE
LLC, PRIME APARTMENT
PROPERTIES LLC, LSL PROPERTY
HOLDINGS II DE LLC, 737 PINE DE
LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES VI LLC,
TROPHY PROPERTIES IV DE LLC,
NOB HILL TOWER DE LLC, AND DOE
ONE THROUGH DOE FIFTY

Date Action Filed:
Trial Date:

Attachments: Exhibits A-C

25
Defendants.
26
27
28

1
STIPULATED INJUNCTION, CASE NO. 455-241

August 16, 2006
Not Yet Set

INTRODUCTION
1

2

This Stipulated Injunction ("Injunction") was presented before the above-captioned Court,

3

the Honorable JOHN E. MUNTER, presiding. Plaintiffs CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN

4

FRANCISCO, a municipal corporation, and the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

5

("Plaintiffsn or the "City"), were represented by their attorney, DENNIS J. HERRERA, City

6

Attorney, appearing through JENNIFER E. CHOI and YVONNE R. MERE, Deputy City

7

Attorneys. Defendants SKYLINE REALTY INC., CITIAPARTMENTS INC., CITI FUNDING

s

GROUP INC., CITISUITES LLC, LEMBI GROUP INC., LEMBI GROUP PARTNERS, LLC,

9

FRANK LEMBI, WALTER LEMBI, DAVID RAYNAL, FRANK LEMBI as TRUSTEE of the

10

FRANKE. LEMBI SURVIVOR'S TRUST dated February 17, 19S4, as restated on June 2, 1999,

11

FRANK LEMBI, as TRUSTEE of the OLGA LEMBI RESIDUAL TRUST created under the

12

provisions of Part Three of the LEMBI FAMILY TRUST dated February 17, 19S4, WALTER

13

LEMBI, as TRUSTEE of the WALTER AND LINDA LEMBI FAMILY TRUST dated June 30,

14

2004, DAVID RAYNAL, as TRUSTEE of the DAVID M. RAYNAL REVOCABLE TRUST

15

dated May 9, 2002, 737 PINE DE LLC, 737 PINE BlO DE, LLC, 737 PINE BlO MEZZ DE,

16

LLC, 1155 LLC, THE GAYLORD HOTEL, LLC, LSL PROPERTIES B14 DE LLC, LSL

17

PROPERTY HOLDINGS II DE, LLC, LSL PROPERTY HOLDINGS II MEZZ, LLC, NOB

lS

HILL TOWER DE, LLC, NOB HILL TOWER MEZZ DE, LLC, PRIME APARTMENT

19

PROPERTIES, LLC, PRIME APARTMENT PROPERTIES BlO DE, LLC, PRIME

20

APARTMENT PROPERTIES BlO MEZZ DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES BlO DE, LLC,

21

TROPHY PROPERTIES IV DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES IV BSA, LLC, TROPHY

22

PROPERTIES IV MEZZ DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES V, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES

23

V DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES VI, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES IV BSA MANAGER,

24

LLC and FIRST APARTMENT RENTALS, INC., 1100 PARK LANE ASSOCIATES DE, LLC,

25

124 MASON DE, LLC, 223S HYDE BlO DE, LLC, 500 BARTLETT DE, LLC, 500 LARKIN

26

BSA, LLC, 950 B14 DE, LLC, BAY CITI PROPERTIES DE, LLC, CITI PROPERTIES DE,

27

LLC, CITI PROPERTIES I DE, LLC, FEL PROPERTIES B14 DE, LLC, FRANKLIN /SUTTER

2S

2
STIPULATED INJUNCTION, CASE NO. 455-241

1

DE, LLC, GOUGH HEIGHTS DE, LLC, LEM/RAY PROPERTIES, LLC, LEM/RAY

2

PROPERTIES I DE, LLC, LOMBARD PLACE DE, LLC, LOMBARD PLACE I DE LLC, LRL

3

CITIGROUP PROPERTIES DE, LLC, LSL PROPERTY HOLDINGS V DE, LLC, LSL

4

PROPERTY HOLDINGS VI DE, LLC, LSL PROPERTIES B14 DE, LLC, PACIFIC PRESTIGE

5

PROPERTIES I DE, LLC, RITZ APARTMENTS DE, LLC, RMSV BAY CITI PROPERTIES I

6

DE, LLC, RMSV BAY CITI PROPERTIES BlO DE, LLC, SKYLINE ENTERPRISES, LLC,

7

SKYLINE ENTERPRISES DE, LLC, SKYLINE INVESTMENTS, LLC, SRV BAY CITI

8

PROPERTIES DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES II, LLC,

9

TROPHY PROPERTIES III DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES VIII, LLC, and TROPHY

10

PROPERTIES XV, LLC ("DEFENDANTS") were represented by their attorneys EDWARD C.

11

SINGER, JR. and EARL BOHACHEK, as to DAVID RAYNAL and his trust only.

12
13

Walter Lemhi is deceased and no successor trustee has been named as Trustee of the
Walter and Linda Lemhi Family Trust dated June 30, 2004.

14

Plaintiffs and DEFENDANTS (collectively, the "Parties") consent to entry of this

15

Stipulated Injunction as an Order by this Court without a noticed motion, hearing or trial.

16

The Parties having stipulated to the provisions set forth herein, the Court having reviewed

17

the provisions, the Parties having agreed to the issuance of this Order, and good cause appearing

18

therefore,

19

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED:

20
21
22

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Plaintiffs brought this action pursuant to various provisions of state and local law including

23

California Business and Professions Code Sections 17200-17210, California Civil Code Sections

24

3479, 3480, 3491, and 3494, California Code of Civil Procedure Section 731, California Health

25

and Safety Code Sections 17910 et seq., and the San Francisco Housing, Building, Plumbing,

26

Electrical, and Administrative Codes.

27
28

3
STIPULATED INJUNCTION, CASE NO. 455-241

1

I.

JURISDICTION
This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and each of the Parties in this action.

2
3
4

5

6
7

8

9
10
11
12

13
14

The Court issues this Order pursuant to its authority under California Business and Professions
Code Section 17203, Civil Code Sections 3491, 3494, and Code of Civil Procedure Section 731.
The Court expressly retains jurisdiction to interpret and enforce this Injunction. The Court may
hear and decide issues regarding the scope and effect of the injunctive provisions. Any party to
this Injunction or entity bound by this Injunction may apply to the Court at any time, after making
a reasonable effort to meet and confer with the other Parties, for further orders and directions as
may be necessary or appropriate for the construction, application, carrying out or enforcement of
the injunctive provisions. The Court may modify any of the injunctive provisions and take such
further action as may be necessary or appropriate to enforce the injunctive provisions, and to
punish any violations. The Parties agree that the obligations arising out of this Injunction shall rest
with all DEFENDANTS and/or FUTURE ENTITIES, as defined herein, jointly and severally,
except as otherwise specifically provided.

15
16

II.

AUTHORITY
Plaintiffs have the authority under California law to maintain this action to protect the

17
18

People of the State of California.

19

20
21

III.

APPLICATION
In the Action, Plaintiffs allege that DEFENDANTS' employed a business model that

22

systematically and unlawfully dispossessed long-term residential tenants of their rent-controlled

23

apartments, leaving DEFENDANTS free to make significant unpermitted renovations and to re-

24

rent those newly renovated units to new tenants at dramatically increased market rates. These

25

business practices violated various provisions of state and local law including California Business

26

and Professions Code Sections 17200-17210, California Civil Code Sections 3479, 3480, 3491,

27

and 3494, California Code of Civil Procedure Section 731, California Health and Safety Code

28
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1

Sections 17910 et seq., and the San Francisco Housing, Building, Plumbing, Electrical, and

2

Administrative Codes. Plaintiffs further allege that the business entity DEFENDANTS were

3

organized and operated in such way that they were the alter egos of DEFENDANTS FRANK

4

LEMBI, WALTER LEMBI, and DAVID RAYNAL.

5
6
7

DEFENDANTS dispute Plaintiffs' claims, allegations and alter ego theories of liability and
deny the violations Plaintiffs allege.
In an effort to come to a negotiated resolution of all of the claims that have arisen in this

8

action, the Parties are executing three separate settlement documents: this Injunction, a Settlement

9

Agreement, and a Stipulated Judgment and Order for Monetary Penalties. By reaching a

10

settlement and agreeing to injunctive terms and payment of civil penalties, DEFENDANTS are not

11

admitting any wrongdoing or making any admission of liability.

12
13

14

A.

DEFINITIONS
1.

"BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY" is any entity or individual except the

15

following: 1) an individual or entity who is a DEFENDANT, FUTURE

16

ENTITY and/or RELATED PARTY including any trust created by or for

17

the benefit of the foregoing.

18

2.

"BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY LENDER/S" shall include the following: a

19

savings bank, a savings and loan association, a commercial bank or trust

20

company, an insurance company, a governmental agency, an investment

21

bank, a merchant bank, a brokerage firm, or an entity or individual that

22

lends money and that in each instance is not a RELATED PARTY.

23

3.

"CORPORATE AND ENTITY DEFENDANTS" includes the following

24

DEFENDANTS: SKYLINE REAL TY INC., CITIAP ARTMENTS INC.,

25

CITI FUNDING GROUP INC., CITISUITES LLC, LEMBI GROUP INC.,

26

LEMBI GROUP PARTNERS LLC, 737 PINE DE LLC, 737 PINE BIO DE,

27

LLC, 73 7 PINE B 10 MEZZ DE LLC, 1155 LLC, THE GAYLORD

28
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1

HOTEL, LLC, LSL PROPERTIES B14 DE, LLC, LSL PROPERTY

2

HOLDINGS II DE, LLC, LSL PROPERTY HOLDINGS II MEZZ, LLC,

3

NOB HILL TOWER DE, LLC, NOB HILL TOWER MEZZ DE, LLC,

4

PRIME APARTMENT PROPERTIES, LLC, PRIME APARTMENT

5

PROPERTIES BlO DE, LLC, PRIME APARTMENT PROPERTIES BlO

6

MEZZ DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES B 10 DE, LLC, TROPHY

7

PROPERTIES IV DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES IV B8A, LLC,

8

TROPHY PROPERTIES IV MEZZ DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES V,

9

LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES V DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES VI,

10

LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES IV B8A MANAGER, LLC, FIRST

11

APARTMENT RENTALS INC., 1100 PARK LANE ASSOCIATES DE,

12

LLC, 124 MASON DE, LLC, 2238 HYDE BlO DE, LLC, 500 BARTLETT

13

DE, LLC, 500 LARKIN B8A, LLC, 950 B14 DE, LLC, BAY CITI

14

PROPERTIES DE, LLC, CITI PROPERTIES DE, LLC, CITI

15

PROPERTIES I DE, LLC, FEL PROPERTIES B14 DE, LLC, FRANKLIN

16

/SUTTER DE, LLC, GOUGH HEIGHTS DE, LLC, LEM/RAY

17

PROPERTIES, LLC, LEM/RAY PROPERTIES I DE, LLC, LOMBARD

18

PLACE DE, LLC, LOMBARD PLACE I DE, LLC, LRL CITIGROUP

19

PROPERTIES DE, LLC, LSL PROPERTY HOLDINGS V DE, LLC, LSL

20

PROPERTY HOLDINGS VI DE, LLC, LSL PROPERTIES B14 DE, LLC,

21

PACIFIC PRESTIGE PROPERTIES I DE, LLC, RITZ APARTMENTS

22

DE, LLC, RMSV BAY CITI PROPERTIES I DE, LLC, RMSV BAY CITI

23

PROPERTIES BIO DE, LLC, SKYLINE ENTERPRISES, LLC, SKYLINE

24

ENTERPRISES DE, LLC, SKYLINE INVESTMENTS, LLC, SRV BAY

25

CITI PROPERTIES DE, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES DE, LLC,

26

TROPHY PROPERTIES II, LLC, TROPHY PROPERTIES III DE, LLC,

(i

27
28
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1

TROPHY PROPERTIES VIII, LLC, and TROPHY PROPERTIES XV,

2

LLC.

3

4.

"FUTURE ENTITY/JES" means any entity (including, without limitation,

4

any partnership, corporation, limited liability company, joint stock

5

company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture or any other entity

6

or association) currently in existence or formed during the effective period

7

of the Agreement, where a MAJORITY INTEREST exists or is obtained

8

during the effective period of this Agreement.

9

5.

"MAJORITY INTEREST" is an ownership interest in a business entity or

10

PROPERTY, where DEFENDANTS or FUTURE ENTITIES, alone, or in

11

combination with one another, or in combination with a RELATED

12

PARTY, directly or indirectly, possess more than a 50% share.

13

6.

"PROPERTY/JES" includes any real property (i) identified in Exhibit A

14

which is managed and/or owned by DEFENDANTS and/or FUTURE

15

ENTITIES or (ii) located within the City and County of San Francisco that

16

contains, or may contain, residential rental units where DEFENDANTS,

17

and/or FUTURE ENTITIES, possess a MAJORITY INTEREST or is

18

managed, operated, or maintained in whole or in part by DEFENDANTS,

19

and/or FUTURE ENTITIES.

20

7.

"RELATED PARTY/IES" means (i) any person at any time related by

21

blood, marriage, or civil union to any individual DEFENDANT, or (ii) any

22

entity that is affiliated with any DEFENDANT or FUTURE ENTITY. For

23

purposes of this Injunction, "affiliated" means an entity that directly or

24

indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with,

25

another entity, and for purposes of the foregoing, "control" means the power

26

to direct the affairs or management of another entity, whether by contract,

27

operation of law or otherwise.

28
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"TRANSFER" means to sell, convey, assign, transfer, alienate or otherwise

8.

1

2

dispose (directly or indirectly, by one or more transactions, and by operation

3

of law or otherwise) of all or any interest, rights, or responsibilities

4

regarding any PROPERTY.

5

PARTIES, ENTITIES, AND PROPERTIES BOUND BY THIS INJUNCTION

6

B.

7

The Court and the Parties agree to submit to this Court's jurisdiction, and agree, in writing,

8

to be bound by the terms of this Injunction's terms, without limitation or restriction. The

9

provisions of this Injunction will apply to all of the following: all DEFENDANTS, including all

10

CORPORATE AND ENTITY DEFENDANTS and FUTURE ENTITIES. For purposes of this

11

Injunction, all DEFENDANTS, including all CORPORATE AND ENTITY DEFENDANTS and

12

FUTURE ENTITIES shall be bound by the actions of their agents, assignees, board members,

13

officers, employees, successors in interest, and all persons who are acting in concert, on behalf of,

14

or in participation with any of them in connection with the PROPERTIES.

15
16

c.

NOTIFICATION REGARDING ACQUISITION OF NEW PROPERTIES
OR FORMATION OF NEW ENTITIES

17

If during the duration of this Injunction DEFENDANTS, and/or FUTURE ENTITIES
18
acquire by TRANSFER any additional residential rental property in the City and County of San
19
Francisco or create or acquire a MAJORITY INTEREST in PROPERTIES, then they shall comply
20
with all of the following:
21

22

1.

Within 30 days of the closing of the TRANSFER, notify the San Francisco

23

City Attorney's Office in writing of the address of the new property, the

24

date of said TRANSFER and the identity(ies) of the transferee( or);

25

2.

DEFENDANTS agree not to form, acquire in whole or part, or participate

26

in the ownership, operation, oversight, or management, of any FUTURE

27

ENTITY unless that entity agrees to be bound by the terms of this

28
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1

Injunction. Within 30 days after forming a FUTURE ENTITY notify the

2

San Francisco City Attorney's Office in writing of the name of the entity,

3

the name of the entity's authorized representative; serve the entity with

4

copies of this Injunction; and require the entity's authorized representative

5

to sign this Injunction and agree to be bound by its terms without

6

limitation, by completing and endorsing the Addendum attached to this

7

Order. See Exhibit B.

8
9

D.

NOTIFICATION REGARDING THE SALE OR TRANSFER OF NEW
PROPERTIES OR FORMATION OF NEW ENTITIES

10
11
12

13

If DEFENDANTS or FUTURE ENTITIES TRANSFER all or part of any PROPERTY
during the term of this Injunction, they shall do the following:

1.

Within 30 days after the closing of any such TRANSFER, notify the San

14

Francisco City Attorney's Office in writing of the address of the

15

PROPERTY and a written declaration signed under penalty of perjury

16

from the entity transferring ownership that the successor owner, operator,

17

manager, or maintainer is a BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY and that a

18

material purpose of that TRANSFER is not to avoid the provisions or the

19

spirit of the Injunction and/or Agreement; and

20
21
22
23
24

25

26
27

2.

If the TRANSFER is to a BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY, then the terms of
this Injunction shall not apply to the BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY.
Notwithstanding any TRANSFER to a BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY, any
DEFENDANT or FUTURE ENTITY who performs residential rental
management services for a BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY owner of
residential rental property in the City and County of San Francisco is
bound by the terms of the Injunction entitled "Tenant Issues" and "Lawful
Remodeling" below.

28
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1

2

IV.

NECESSITY FOR INJUNCTION

3

This Court finds that this Injunction is necessary in the interest of the health, safety, and

4

welfare of the residents of the City and County of San Francisco and the citizens of the State of

5

California and to ensure that DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES comply with all

6

applicable laws in the ownership, operation, management or maintenance of PROPERTIES.

7

INJUNCTIVE TERMS

8
9

I.

TERMS
A.
TENANT ISSUES

10
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES subject to
11
this Injunction, are hereby enjoined and restrained from:
12

1.

Audiotaping tenants without their written permission (exclusive of voice
mail messages left by tenants) or unlawfully videotaping or photographing
tenants or the interior of their units without their written permission;

2.

Entering tenant units without giving any necessary notice as set forth in
Civil Code Section 1954;

3.

Entering tenant units except in accordance with the procedures as set forth
in Civil Code Section 1954;

4.

Preventing or interfering with the entry of non-building resident caregivers
or other non-resident guests who provide assistance to seniors and disabled
residents and who agree they are not attempting to establish building
residence by their caregiver status and agree to comply with any applicable
SRO visitor policy;

5.

Requesting information regarding the nationality and immigration status of
non-employee tenant residents except as required by law;

6.

Retaliating through the legal or administrative process by initiating or
pursuing administrative actions against tenants for any exercise of their
lawful rights, including requesting repairs; and

7.

Threatening to evict or evicting any tenant without lawful justification.

13

14
15
16
17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24
25

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES subject to
this Injunction must comply with all of the following:

26

27
28
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1

2

1.

Respond to tenants' requests for repairs for which property owners are
responsible by law or agreement within 72 hours of a request or complaint.
Such response shall include the approximate date and time of repair.

2.

Establish a protocol for non-emergency situations regarding the changing of
locks in a building and the dispensation of keys as follows:

3

4
5

a.

Provide written notice to each affected tenant at least 5 days in
advance of changing the locks to any individual or common area
doors;

b.

In addition to such individual notice, post a notice on each floor
and in the lobby of each affected building at least 5 days in
advance of changing the locks to any individual or common area
doors;

c.

All notices related to changing the locks to any individual or
common area doors, shall state a specific date when the locks are
scheduled to -be changed; and

d.

New keys will be delivered on or before the time of lock change
and shall be furnished to any lawful occupant without regard to
whether their name appears on the lease. DEFENDANTS and the
FUTURE ENTITIES may ask to review but not copy, a valid form
of identification, but may not ask for immigration documents.

6
7
8
9
10
11
12

3.

Provide all buildings with a residential "caretaker" as required in San
Francisco Housing Code Section 1311.

4.

Establish a protocol for contacting tenants regarding relocation, which will
adhere to all of the following:

13
14
15

a.

Communicate any initial relocation or buy-out offer in writing.
That communication shall include the following: language
explaining a tenant's right to reject the offer and to place the
household on a "No Contact" list regarding buy-out offers; a "No
Contact" form for tenants to fill out and fax or mail back stating a
household's desire not to be contacted in the future regarding buyout offers; the amount of the initial buyout offer; and a proposed
surrender or buyout agreement.

b.

The "No Contact" list referenced above will be maintained by
DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES and will preclude
those entities from making any additional and future buy-out or
relocation offers to any household that returns the" No Contact"
form or otherwise requests to not to be contacted regarding buyout
offers for a six month period after such form or request is received,
unless the tenant specifically requests contact regarding buy-out
offers.

c.

If that household has not sent in a "No Contact" form within thirty
days of mailing of the written communication, DEFENDANTS
and any FUTURE ENTITIES may call or write the household
regarding buy-out offers to follow-up but must again inform the
household regarding its right to be placed on the "No Contact" list.
DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES shall maintain a list
of all contacts and correspondence sent to a particular household
regarding buyout offers.

d.

If the household expresses interest in the relocation offer,
11

16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23
24

25

26
27

28
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DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES shall give the
household at least five business days from the date the written
buyout offer was provided to the household to consider the offer
and shall not contact the household about the buyout offer during
that period.

1
2
3

e.

4

5
6

f.

The household shall have the right to rescind any and all terms of
the buy-out/relocation agreement up to and including the date of
the tenants' receipt of the buy-out amount. Notwithstanding the
· household's right to rescind, DEFENDANTS shall retain all legal
rights to seek return of buy-out monies tendered to a household
that subsequently rescinds the buy-out/relocation agreement.

g.

Nothing in this Injunction shall interfere with a tenants' ability to
contact DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES to initiate
or resume buyout or relocation discussions.

7
8
9

10

The full balance of the buy-out amount shall be paid to the
household on or before the tender of the keys and possession of the
unit. No buy-out monies shall be used to pay for any damage, past
due rent, or other charges that are due and owing pursuant to Civil
Code Section 1950.5.

11

B.

12

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES subject to

13

LAWFUL REMODELING AND CONSTRUCTION WORK

this Injunction, are hereby enjoined and restrained from:

14

1.

Altering, remodeling, or constructing any portion of a building without first
obtaining all building, electrical, plumbing and/or mechanical permits
required by law.

2.

Exceeding the scope or character of work as permitted under a permit;

3.

Failing to give 48-hour written notice to tenants in advance of any planned
non-emergency utility interruption or elevator stoppage;

4.

Permitting a planned non-emergency utility interruption or elevator
stoppage to persist longer than four hours in any given week, absent good
cause;

5.

Giving tenants less than 10 days written notice in advance of commencing
any planned non-emergency construction and/or remodeling work anywhere
in the building; and

6.

Failing to confine non-emergency construction and/or remodeling work to
the hours of7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.

15
16

17
18
19

20
21
22
23

24
25

C.

VIOLATIONS OF MUNICIPAL HOUSING, BUILDING, PLUMBING,
ELECTRICAL AND/OR PLUMBING CODES
1.

Past Code Violations

The Parties acknowledge that DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES are

26

responsible for ensuring that the PROPERTIES must be kept in a healthy and safe manner and in

27

compliance with all applicable local and state laws. In order to ensure that each PROPERTY is so

28
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1

maintained, Plaintiffs have agreed to give DEFENDANTS as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES,

2

the opportunity to cure certain violations present at the PROPERTIES. For purposes of this

3

Paragraph, these violations are limited to kitchen and bathroom remodels within the individual

4

units at the Properties that were performed without proper Building, Plumbing and/or Electrical

5

permits (hereinafter, "Remodel Code Violations").
a.

6
7

Voluntary Disclosure

The Parties agree that DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES have one year from

8

the date of ent1y of this Order to identify and disclose any Remodel Code Violations to the

9

Department of Building Inspection ("DBI") and not be subjected to additional penalties or fees.

10

After such Remodel Code Violations are disclosed to DBI, the DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE

11

ENTITIES shall abate the Remodel Code Violations, including paying any assessment fees to DBI

12

and obtaining all appropriate sign-offs from DBI either: 1) within the one-year time period for

13

disclosure of the Remodel Code Violations; or 2) within any time period determined by DBI,

14

whichever time period is longer. If these violations are timely disclosed, and subsequently abated

15

pursuant to the aforementioned, the Parties agree that those Remodel Code Violations will not

16

constitute a violation of this Injunction.

17
18

b.

.

Involuntary Disclosure

During this one year period for disclosure of Remodel Code Violations, if DBI

19

independently discovers Remodel Code Violations, DEFENDANTS, and any FUTURE

20

ENTITIES must abate those violations within the time period determined by DBL

21

At the expiration of the year period, any Remodel Code Violations discovered and

22

confirmed by Plaintiffs at any PROPERTY may constitute a violation ofthis Injunction, as well as

23

any applicable law, and DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES may be subject to civil

24

penalties and attorneys' fees as described in Section F below, as well as any other penalty or relief

25

prescribed by law.

26
27
28
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2.

Outstanding Code Violations

1
2

3
4

5

6
7

DEFENDANTS acknowledge that one or more PROPERTIES have current and open
citations, notices of violation, and orders of abatement (hereinafter "outstanding DBI enforcement
actions") for both Remodel Code Violations as well as other Building, Housing, Plumbing,
Electrical and/or Mechanical Code violations issued by DBI.
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that DEFENDANTS as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES must
comply with all of the following:
a.

8

For outstanding DBI enforcement actions with open deadlines,

9

DEFENDANTS as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES, must abate the

10

violations (including paying all assessments to DBI and obtaining all

11

necessary sign-offs from DBI) within the time period determined by

12

DBI in the enforcement action, or other deadlines or extensions

13

approved by DBI;

14

b.

For outstanding DBI enforcement actions in which deadlines are

15

now past due, DEFENDANTS as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES

16

must abate the outstanding violations (including paying all

17

assessments to DBI and obtaining all necessary sign-offs from DBI)

18

within 30 calendar days of execution of this Injunction; and

19
c.

At all times, DEFENDANTS as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES

20
must maintain the PROPERTIES in such a manner and condition as
21
to not constitute a public nuisance, including, but not limited to,
22
keeping the PROPERTIES properly secured, and cured of all
23
municipal and state code violations, including, but not limited to,
24

those related to public health and safety.

25

3.

Future Code Violations

26
If DEFENDANTS as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES receive any Notices of Violation,

27
Citations, Orders of Abatement or any other administrative notices or orders (hereinafter

28
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1

"administrative action") from DBI regarding the PROPERTIES after the execution of this

2

Injunction, regardless of when those violations occurred, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that

3

DEFENDANTS as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES subject to this Injunction must comply with

4

all of the following:

5

a.

6

Notify the City Attorney's Office, Code Enforcement Division
within 5 days of the issuance of the administrative action; and

7

b.

Abate the code violations within the time specified by DBI in its

8
enforcement action, and secure proper permits, if required.

9

4.

10

Department Of Building Inspection Administrative and Assessment
Fees

11

For all Building, Housing, Plumbing and/or Electrical Code violations described in

12

Paragraphs C(l)-(3), pages 12-15, DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES responsible for

13

such PROPERTIES shall be liable and separately pay DBI for its inspection, investigation and

14

assessment fees. The payment of assessment fees shall be made directly to DBI upon demand,

15

including all outstanding fees and all fees incurred during the pendency of this Injunction. Any

16

monies paid pursuant to this Injunction or Agreement are separate from any Administrative

17

Assessment Fees assessed by DBL Any monies owing pursuant to this Injunction or Agreement

18

are the obligations of the DEFENDANTS or FUTURE ENTITIES responsible for committing the

19

violations.

20

21

D.

22

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that DEFENDANTS, as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES

UNFAIR AND UNLAWFUL BUSINESS PRACTICES.

23

subject to this Injunction, are hereby restrained and enjoined from engaging in the following

24

unlawful and unfair conduct:

25
26

1.

Maintaining, operating, occupying or using any PROPERTIES in such a
manner as to constitute a public nuisance;

27
28
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Maintaining, operating, occupying or using any PROPERTIES in such a

2.

1
2

manner as to constitute an unfair and/or unlawful business act or practice as

3

described by California Business and Professions Code Sections 17200-

4

17210; or
Maintaining, operating, occupying or using any PROPERTIES in such a

3.

5

manner as to constitute violations of any provision of municipal or state law

6

FEES, COSTS, AND PENALTIES.

7

E.

8

The Parties have come to a monetary resolution of this matter that involves three separate

9

payment provisions that are described in greater detail in the Settlement Agreement filed

10

concurrently. The provisions for payment of monetary civil penalties set forth in paragraph D of

11

the Settlement Agreement are incorporated by reference here. Any failure to make payments

12

pursuant to the Settlement Agreement shall be deemed a violation of this Injunction, subjecting the

13

applicable DEFENDANT(s) to any and all penalties described in this Injunction.

14
15

F.

ENFORCEMENT.
1.

Declaration of Compliance

16
17

a.

FUTURE ENTITIES owning, managing, operating, or maintaining

18

any of the PROPERTIES must provide Plaintiffs a Declaration of

19

Compliance signed by all DEFENDANTS under penalty of perjury,

20

detailing DEFENDANTS' efforts to comply with the provisions of

21

this Order with respect to all DEFENDANTS and PROPERTIES

22

governed by this Injunction. A copy of a blank Declaration of

23

Compliance is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

24

25

26
27

In order to monitor and enforce this Order, DEFENDANTS and

b.

These Declarations of Compliance shall be due on or before each
January 1, April 1, July 1, and October 1 during the effective period
of this Order.

28
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1

c.

Upon receipt of a Declaration of Compliance, Plaintiffs have the

2

right to examine DEFENDANTS and/or FUTURE ENTITIES and

3

request additional information and/or documents to substantiate

4

DEFENDANTS' and/or FUTURE ENTITIES' claims. Plaintiffs will

5

submit such a request in writing to DEFENDANTS' and/or

6

FUTURE ENTITIES' counsel and DEFENDANTS and/or FUTURE

7

ENTITIES shall have no more than 15 calendar days from the date

8

of the request to provide additional information and documents

9

responsive to Plaintiffs' requests. DEFENDANTS' and/or FUTURE

10

ENTITIES' failure to timely respond or to provide Plaintiffs with

11

additional information relating to compliance with this Injunction

12

shall constitute a violation of this Injunction and be subject to the

13

enforcement provisions and penalties detailed below.

14

d.

Failure to timely submit a Declaration of Compliance or submission

15

of a Declaration of Compliance containing inaccurate or misleading

16

information shall constitute a violation of this Injunction and be

17

subject to the enforcement provisions and penalties detailed below.

18

e.

In addition to the information contained in Exhibit C, the Initial

19

Declaration of Compliance shall also include the following three

20

documents:

21

1.

a list of all units where there is an outstanding Notice of

22

Violation issued by any division of DBI for either work

23

performed without requisite permits or work performed that

24

exceeds the scope of a permit;

25

26

11.

a list of all units where there is an outstanding Notice of
Violation issued by any division of DBI; and

27

28
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iii.

1

a list of all units renovated from. August 2002 to the present

2

where the value of the renovation work performed was $500

3

or more.

4

5

2.

Penalties and Fees
a.

Violation of any provision of this Injunction may constitute

6

contempt of court as described in California Code of Civil Procedure

7

section 1218, et seq. In the event that the Court determines after

8

hearing that DEFENDANTS as well as any FUTURE ENTITIES

9

have willfully violated any of the terms of this Injunction, the

10

applicable DEFENDANT or FUTURE ENTITY shall be liable for

11

civil penalties of no less than $2,500 and no more than $6,000 for

12

each violation of this Injunction pursuant to Business and

13

Professions Code Sections 17206 and 17207.

14

b.

Should the Court determine after hearing that any DEFENDANT or

15

FUTURE ENTITY willfully violated any terms of this Injunction,

16

Plaintiffs shall have the right to recover all reasonable attorneys' fees

17

and costs incurred in enforcing said violation as determined by the

18

Court against the responsible DEFENDANT or FUTURE ENTITY.

19

c.

20

Injunction shall be in addition to any other relief or sanctions that the

21

22
23
24

Any fines, penalties, or other monetary relief specified in this

Court may order as a matter of law or equity.

d.

Any fines, penalties, or other monetary relief specified in this
Injunction shall not preclude Plaintiffs from. obtaining other penalties
or relief prescribed by law.

25
26
27
28
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G.
1

JURISDICTION AND JUDICIAL ENFORCEMENT OF THIS
INJUNCTION.

2

The Court expressly reserves jurisdiction to take such further action as may be necessary or

3

appropriate to enforce the provisions of this Injunction, and to order all appropriate relief under the

4

law. For the duration of the injunctive period, all disputes arising or hearings required regarding

5

compliance with this Injunction shall be brought to the Honorable John E. Munter, Judge of the

6

San Francisco Superior Court, for resolution. If Judge John E. Munter is not available, any dispute

7

may be brought before any Judge of the San Francisco Superior Court.

8

H.

9

Unless otherwise stated, DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES shall comply with

EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM OF INJUNCTION.

10

the terms of this Injunction upon entry by the Court. The terms of this Injunction shall be in effect

11

for 5 years from the date of entry. For good cause shown, Plaintiffs may ask the Court to extend

12

the term of this Injunction.

13

I.

14

This Injunction shall be filed with this Court and recorded at the San Francisco Assessor's

15

Office. Plaintiffs agree that this Injunction is binding only on the DEFENDANTS and FUTURE

16

ENTITIES. If requested by any BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY LENDER, Plaintiffs agree to

17

subordinate this Injunction upon receiving notice and verifiable written documentation that a

18
19
20
21

22
23
24

25

26

RECORDATION.

PROPERTY is being refinanced by a BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY LENDER. Upon the sale to
any BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY purchaser, Plaintiffs agree, upon receiving notice and verifiable
written documentation that a PROPERTY is being sold to a BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY
purchaser, to withdraw this Injunction.

J.

DISMISSAL OR SATISFACTION OF INJUNCTION. At the expiration of the

term of this Injunction Plaintiffs will dismiss this action with prejudice and withdraw this
Injunction. DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES shall not be deemed "prevailing
parties" under Code of Civil Procedure Section 1032 as a consequence of dismissal as herein
contemplated.

27
28

19
STIPULATED INJUNCTION, CASE NO. 455-241

1

K.

NOWAIVER OF RIGHT TO ENFORCE. The failure of Plaintiffs to enforce

2

any such provision shall not preclude Plaintiffs from later enforcing the same or any other

3

provision of this Injunction; nor shall such failure be deemed a waiver of such provision or in any

4

way affect the validity of this Injunction. No oral advice, guidance, suggestion or comments by

5

Plaintiffs' employees or officials regarding matters covered in this Injunction shall be construed to

6

relieve DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES of their obligations hereunder.

7

L.

8

The Parties agree that a copy of this Injunction shall be posted in a prominent and public

9

PUBLICATION AND DISSEMINATION OF INJUNCTION

place on each floor of each PROPERTY. DEFENDANTS further agree to require that all

10

FUTURE ENTITIES post a copy of the Injunction in a prominent and public place on each floor

11

of each PROPERTY owned, managed, operated or maintained by such FUTURE ENTITY.

12

SO STIPULATED:

13

Alex G. Tse
Yvonne R. Mere
Jennifer Choi
Jill Cannon
Deputy City Attorneys

DATED:

14
15
16

17

Attorney for Plaintiffs
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN
FRANCISCO and PEOPLE OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

18

19
20

Earl Bohachek
Attorney for DEFENDANTS
DAVID RAYNAL individually and as
RUSTEE of the DAVID M. RAYNAL
VOCABLE TRUST dated May 9, 2002

21
22

23
24

Edward mger
Attorney for all other DEFENDANTS

25

26
27
28
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1

K.

NO WAIVER OF RIGHT TO ENFORCE. The failure of Plaintiffs to enforce

such provision shall not preclude Plaintiffs from later enforcing the same or any other
~r

vision of this Injunction; nor shall such failure be deemed a waiver of such provision or in any
affect the validity of this Injunction. No oral advice, guidance, suggestion or comments by

Pl intiffs' employees or officials regarding matters covered in this Injunction shall be construed to
fre eve DEFENDANTS and any FUTURE ENTITIES of their obligations hereunder.
7

L.

8

The Parties agree that a copy of this Injunction shall be posted in a prominent and public

PUBLICATION AND DISSEMINATION OF INJUNCTION

~l ce on each floor of each PROPERTY. DEFENDANTS further agree to require that all

1(f' TURE ENTITIES post a copy of the Injunction in a prominent and public place on each floor
1 lo

ach PROPERTY owned, managed, operated or maintained by such FUTURE ENTITY.

l:S

STIPULATED:

13

DATED:

2>(,_q \ \\

Alex G. Tse
Yvonne R. Mere
Jennifer Choi
Jill Cannon
Deputy City Attorneys

14
15
16

17
18
19
20

1Bohachek
ttorney for DEFENDANTS
DAVID RAYNAL individually and as
TRUSTEE of the DAVID -:- RA YNAL
REV CABLE TRUST ted May 9, 2002

21
22

23
24

Edward Singer
Attorney for all other DEFENDANTS

25

26
I
2

b

S SO ORDERED:
TED:
JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT

28
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City and County of San Francisco
and the Pij~the State of California

B~~~~----==--~~+-~
'-·
ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

7

FRANK LEMBI as TRUSTEE of the FRANK
E. LEMBI SURVIVOR'S TRUST dated
Februa 17, 1984, as restated on June 2, 1999

11

FRANK LE BI, as TRUSTEE of the OLGA
LEMBI RESIDUAL TRUST created under the
provisions of Part Three of the LEMBI
FAMILY TR ST dated February 17, 1984

12
13
14
15

DAVI
YNAL, as TRUSTEE of the
DAVID M. RAYNAL REVOCABLE TRUST
dated May 9, 2002

16
17
18
19

BY:

-1--/-----+--;r..~~~~

20
21

25

26

II I

II I

27
28
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:~

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

3
4

5
6

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

7
8

9
10
11
12
13

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

14
15
16
ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

17
18

ROPERTIES BIO DE

19

20
ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

21
22
23

24
25

26
27

28

22
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PERTI~V B8AMANAGER,

1

~~~

2
3

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

4

~INC.

5
6

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

7

-~

8
9

BY:

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

10
11

E,LLC

12
13
14

~

15
16

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

17

~

18
19

BY: +--~"'----,.,6-~~

20

ITS:

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

21

~

22
23

24

BH·~::z:_~~~~~~~~
ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

ITS: AUTHORI-?'.ED SIGNATOR

25
26
27
28
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E,LLC

7

~

8

9

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

10

~IESDE,LLC.

11

12
13

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

14
15

16
17

::.~~
20

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

21

~:L~C

22
23

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

24
25

26
27
28
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1

2
3

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

c

4
5
6

7
8

9
10
11

12
13

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

14

~LC

15

16
17
18

~i/c

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGNATOR

19
20

ITS: AUTHORIZED SIGN

21

22
23

24
25

26
27

28
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1 IT IS SO ORDERED:
2

DATED:

-~~211 UY/f

~f:~
JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT

3

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

12
13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
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· Exhibit "A"

1

2

EXHIBIT A

3

PROPERTIES and ENTITIES

4

5

Properties

Ownership Entity

First Apts
I I 00 Park Lane Associates DE, LLC
I24 Mason DE, LLC
2238 Hyde BIO DE, LLC

II

Management company
I I 00 Sacramento Street
124 Mason Street
2238 Hyde Street -View
Tower
500-506 Bartlett Street
500 Larkin Street
508 Larkin Street

I2

62I Stockton Street

621 Stockton DE, LLC

73 7 Pine Street

737 Pine BIO DE, LLC

950 Franklin Street

950 B14 DE, LLC

977-995 Ellis Street
969 Bush Street
915 Pierce Street
601 O'Farrell Street
1035 Sutter Street
11 Dolores Street

950 B14 DE, LLC
Bay Citi Properties DE, LLC
Bay Citi Properties II DE, LLC
Bay Citi Properties DE, LLC
Citi Properties DE, LLC
Citi Properties I DE, LLC

100 Broderick Street
400 Duboce Street
106 Sanchez Street
2 I 1 Church Street
235-241 Church Street
252-258 Church Street

Civic Properties DE, LLC
Civic Properties DE, LLC
Civic Properties DE, LLC
FEL Properties B 14 DE, LLC
FEL Properties B 14 DE, LLC
FEL Properties B 14 DE, LLC

2073-2079 Market Street

FEL Properties B 14 DE, LLC

2097 Market I 211 Church
Street
1461 Burlingame Avenue,
Burlingame
1405 Franklin Street
1520 Gough Street
1550 Steiner Street
935 Geary Street
81 9th Street
1320/1340/1360/1380

FEL Properties B14 DE, LLC

6
7

8
9
IO

13
14
15
16
I7
18
19
20
21

22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Managed by an
entity related to
Defendants

x

500 Bartlett DE, LLC
500 Larkin B8A, LLC
500 Larkin B8A, LLC

x
x
x
x
x
x
x

FEL-WRL Properties B14 DE, LLC
Franklin /Sutter DE, LLC
Gough Heights DE, LLC
LEM/RAY Properties, LLC
LEM/RAY Properties I DE, LLC
LEM/RAY Properties I DE, LLC
Lombard Place DE, LLC
27
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x
x
x
x

ELECTRON LCALLY

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

DENNIS J. HERRERA, State Bar#139669
City Attorney
,
YVONNE R. MERE, State Bar #173594
Complex & Affirmative Litigation Team Leader
BRADLEY A. RUSSI, State Bar #256993
SARA J. EISENBERG, StateBar#269303
Deputy City Attorneys
1390 Market Street, 7th Floor
San Francisco, California 94102-5408
Telephone:
(415) 554-3800
Facsimile:
(415) 554-3985
E-Mail:
sara.eisenberg@sfgov.org
E-Mail:
brad.russi@sfgov.org

FILED
Superior Court or Calffomla,
County of San Francisco

04/19/2016

Clerk of the Court
BY:VANESSA WU

Deputy Clerk

Attorneys for Plaintiff
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO AND
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

10

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

11

COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

12

UNLIMITED JURISDICTION

13
14
15

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN
FRANCISCO, a Municipal Corporation, and
the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, by and through DENNIS
HERRERA, City Attorney for the City and
County of San Francisco,

16
17

Plaintiff,

18

vs.

19
20

Case No. CGC-15-548551

REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE IN
SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS' MOTION FOR
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION
Hearing Date:
Time:
Place:

May 12, 2016
9:30 a.m.
Department 501

Date Action Filed:
Trial Date:

October 21, 2015
Not set

CHUCK M. POST, individually and d/b/a
APARTMENTSINSF.COM; LEM-RAY
PROPERTIES I DE, LLC; and DOE ONE
through DOE FIFTY,

21
Defendants.
22 !+-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
23
24
25
26
27
28
RJN ISO Motion for Preliminary Injunction

Case No. CGC-15-548551

Under Evidence Code section 452, Plaintiffs City and County of San Francisco and People of
2

the State of California, request this Court to take judicial notice of the following records, true and

3

correct copies of which are filed concurrently herewith. See Bravo Vending v. City of Rancho Mirage,

4

16 Cal. App. 4th 383, 405-06 (taking judicial notice oflegislative history oflocal ordinance); Alfaro v.

5

Community Housing Imp. System & Planning Ass 'n, Inc., 171 Cal. App. 4th 1356, 1367 n.8 (2009)

6

(taking judicial notice of recorded grant deed).

7

1.

Exhibit A:

San Francisco Board of Supervisors File for Ordinance 251-98.

8

2.

Exhibit B:

Certified copy of grant deed for 935 Geary Street and 81 Ninth Street,

9

recorded with the San Francisco Assessor-Recorder on July 14, 2005.

10
11

12

Dated: April 14, 2016

13

SARA J. EISENBERG
Attorneys for Plaintiff
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
RJN ISO Motion for Preliminary Injunction

Case No. CGC-13-533693
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LEGISLATIVE HISTORY SHEET

==========================================================================
File Number:
Heading:
Title:

000-98-0951

ORDINANCE

Recd: 06 08 1998

Housing Discrimination
Ordinance amending Police Code Section 3304 to
prohibit housing discrimination based on source of
income and other economic discrimination.
Supervisors Brown, Ammiano presented.

==========================================================================
Chronology:
06
06
06
07

08
10
16
02

1998
1998
1998
1998

07
07
07
07

13
13
20
31

1998
1998
1998
1998

Referred to Housing and Neighborhood Svcs Committee.
Supervisor Bierman added as co-sponsor.
From Budget Analyst, advising of no fiscal impact.
HEARING HELD. AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING SAME
TITLE PRESENTED IN COMMITTEE. ADOPTED. AMENDMENT
OF THE WHOLE TO BOARD "WITHOUT RECOMMENDATION".
Passed on first reading.
Supervisors Katz, Medina added as co-sponsors.
Finally passed.
Approved: Ord No. 251-98

AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE
7 /02/98

FILE NO. 98-0951

ORDINANCE NO.

11'.2

S / • 'f i

~~~-=-------=--...;__~~

1

[Housing Discrimination]

2

AMENDING ARTICLE 33 OF THE SAN FRANCISCO POLICE CODE, SECTION 3304, TO

3

PROHIBIT HOUSING DISCRIMINATION BASED ON SOURCE OF INCOME AND OTHER

4

ECONOMIC DISCRIMINATION.

5

Note:

Additions are underlined; deletions are in ((double parentheses)).

6
Be it ordained by the People of the City and County of San Francisco:

7
Section 1. Article 33 of the San Francisco Police Code is hereby amended by

8
amending Section 3304 to read as follows:

9
SEC. 3304. HOUSING. (a) Prohibited Activity. It shall be unlawful for any person to do any

10
11

12

13
14

15
16
17

18

of the following acts wholly or partially based on race, religion, color, ancestry, age, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, disability source of income or place of birth:
(1)

To interrupt, terminate, or fail or refuse to initiate or conduct any transaction in

real property, including but not limited to the rental thereof; to require different terms for such
transaction; or falsely to represent that an interest in real property is not available for
transaction;
(2)

To include in the terms or conditions of a transaction in real property any clause,

condition or restriction;

(3)

To refuse to lend money, guarantee the loan of money, accept a deed of trust or

19

mortgage, or otherwise refuse to make available funds for the purchase, acquisition,

20

construction, alteration, rehabilitation, repair or maintenance of real property; or impose

21

different conditions on such financing; or refuse to provide title or other insurance relating to

22

the ownership or use of any interest in real property;

23

(4)

24

or lessee;

25

(5)

To refuse or restrict facilities, services, repairs or improve1nents for any tenant

To make, print, publish, advertise or disseminate in any way, or cause to be

SUPERVISORS BROWN, AMMIANO , BIERMAN
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1

kA{L1 /Ylt'J)J1JA
Page 1
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made, printed or published, advertised or disseminated in any way, any notice, statement or

2

advertisement with respect to a transaction or proposed transaction in real property, or with

3

respect to financing related to any such transaction, which unlawfully indicates preference,

4

limitation or discrimination based on race, religion, color, ancestry, age, sex, sexual

5

orientation, gender identity, disability source of income or place of birth.

6

For purposes of this Subsection (a) "source of income" means all lawful sources of income or

7
8
9

10
11

12

rental assistance from any federal. state local or nonprofit-administered benefit or subsidy
program. "Source of income" also means a rental assistance program homeless assistance
program security deposit assistance program or housing subsidy program. "Source of
income" includes any requirement of any such program or source of income or rental
assistance.
(b)

Prohibited Economic Discrimination. It shall be unlawful for any

person to use a financial or income standard for the rental of housing that does

13
either of the following:

14

15
16
17

18
19

(1)

Fails to account for any rental payments or portions of rental

payments that will be made by other individuals or organizations on the same
basis as rental payments to be made directly by the tenant or prospective tenant.
(2)

Fails to account for the aggregate income of persons residing

together or proposing to reside together or and aggregate income of tenants or
prospective tenants and their cosigners or proposed cosigners on the same

20

basis as the aggregate income of married persons residing together or proposing

21

to reside together.

22

M. (((b)))

23

(1)

Exceptions.

Nothing in this Article shall be construed to apply to the rental or leasing of any

24

housing unit in which the owner or any member of his or her family occupies one of the living

25

units and: (1) it is necessary for the owner to use either a bathroom or kitchen facility in

SUPERVISORS BROWN, AMMIANO
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Page 2
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1

common with the prospective tenant; or (2) the structure contains less than three dwelling

2

units;
(2)

3
4

Nothing in this Article shall be deemed to permit any rental or occupancy of any

dwelling unit or commercial space otherwise prohibited by law.

5

6

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

7

LOUISE H. RENNE, City Attorney

8

By:

(Im~

Deputy City Attorney

9
10
11

12
13
14

15
16

17
18
19

20
21
22
23

24

25
SUPERVISORS BROWN, AMMIANO
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
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FILE NO.

98-0951

ORDINANCE N O . - - - - - - - -

)
1

[Housing Discrimination]

2

AMENDING ARTICLE 33 OF THE SAN FRANCISCO POLICE CODE,/SECTION 3304, TO

3

PROHIBIT HOUSING DISCRIMINATION BASED ON SOURCE Of INCOME AND OTHER

4

ECONOMIC DISCRIMINATION.

5

Note:

6

Be it ordained by the People of the City and County of San Francisco:

7

8
9

10
11

Section 1. Article 33 of the San Francisco Police Code is hereby amended by
amending Section 3304 to read as follows:
SEC. 3304. HOUSING. (a) Prohibited

14
15

It shall be unlawful for any person to do any

sexual orientation, gender identity, disability source of income or place of birth:
To interrupt, terminate, or fail or refuse to initiate or conduct any transaction in

(1)

real property, including but not limited to the rental thereof; to require different terms for such
transaction; or falsely to represent that an interest in real property is not available for
transaction;

16
17

Activity~_

of the following acts wholly or partially based on race, religion, color, ancestry, age, sex,

12

13

Additions are underlined; deletions are in ((double parentheses)).

To include in the terms or conditions of a transaction in real property any clause,

(2)

condition or restriction;

18

(3)

To refuse to. lend money, guarantee the loan of money, accept a deed of trust or

19

mortgage, or otherwiserefuse to make available funds for the purchase, acquisition,

20

construction, alteratiqn, rehabilitation, repair or maintenance of real property; or impose

21

different conditions,bn such financing; or refuse to provide title or other insurance relating to

22

the ownership or,Gse of any interest in real property;
I

1

23

(4)

24

or lessee;

25

(5)

lcS refuse or restrict facilities, services, repairs or improvements for any tenant
f

To make, print, publish, advertise or disseminate in any way, or cause to be
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1

made, printed or published, advertised or disseminated in any way, any notice, statement or

2

advertisement with respect to a transaction or proposed transaction in real property, or with

3

respect to financing related to any such transaction, which unlawfully indicates preference,

4

limitation or discrimination based on race, religion, color, ancestry, age, sex, sexual

5

orientation, gender identity, disability or place of birth.

6
7
8

9
10

11
12

For purposes of this Subsection (a) "source of income" means all lawful sources of income or
rental assistance including but not limited to any federal state. local or nonprofit assistance
benefits or subsidy program. "Source of income" also means a rental assistance program
homeless assistance program security deposit assistance program or housing subsidy
program. "Source of income" includes any requirement of any such program or source of
income or rental assistance.

(b)

Prohibited Economic Discrimination. It shall be unlawful for any

person to use a financial or income standard for the rental of housing that does

13
either of the following:

14
(1)

15

16
17
18

19
20

21

Fails to account for any rental payments or portions of rental

payments that will be made by other individuals or organizations on the same
basis as rental payments to be made directly by the tenant or prospective tenant.
(2)

Fails to account for the aggregate income of persons residing

together or proposing to reside together or and aggregate income of tenants or
prospective tenants and their cosigners or proposed cosigners on the same
basis as the aggregate income of married persons residing together or proposing
to reside together.

22

.cg (((b)))

23

(1)

Exceptions.

Nothing in this Article shall be construed to apply to the rental or leasing of any

24

housing unit in which the owner or any member of his or her family occupies one of the living

25

units and: (1) it is necessary for the owner to use either a bathroom or kitchen facility in
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1

common with the prospective tenant; or (2) the structure contains less than three dwelling

2

units;
(2)

3
4

Nothing in this Article shall be deemed to permit any rental or occupancy of any

dwelling unit or commercial space otherwise prohibited by law.

5
6

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

7

LOUISE H. RENNE, City Attorney

8

By:

(f}f;ul ~
Deputy City Attorney

9
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11

12
13
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20

21
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23
24
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July 13, 1998
Board of Supervisors
City and County of San Francisco
Room 308, 401 Van Ness Avenue
San Francisco, California 94102
Re: Item 34, July 13, 1998 Agenda
Dear Supervisors:
We are at a loss to understand how any of you could possibly consider
supporting a measure which would prohibit a person engaged in the business of
providing housing from making "economic determinations" concerning prospective
tenants. If we are still a free society, every business person should have the right to
protect himself or herself from business risk and this applies equally to a lender
considering a mortgage loan application and a rental property owner considering a
rental application. Both agree to perform a service based on the expectation of
future payment. And, both should have a right to make business decisions based on
"economic considerations". Would you contend that a lender should be prohibited
from making a decision based on "source of income" and other economic factors? Of
course not. How, then, can you contend that such prohibitions should be imposed
on rental property owners?
The amendments to the Police Code prohibiting "economic discrimination"
proposed by Supervisors Ammiano, Bierman and Brown should be an affront to every
business person. If the prohibition of "economic discrimination" in business is so
compelling an idea, perhaps you should give consideration to discontinuing all
economic requirements for participation in city-sponsored programs.
Item 34 on today's agenda should be defeated. We hope you agree.

~:u.u~t::::;.

abris
xecutive Vice President

REALTOR" is a registered collective membership mark which may be used only by
real estate professionals who are members of the National Association of REALTORS®
and subscribe to its strict Code of Ethics.
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cc:

Supervisor Tom Ammiano
. Supervisor Sue Bierman
Supervisor Amos Brown
Supervisor Leslie Katz
Supervisor Barbara Kaufman
Supervisor Mark Leno
Supervisor Jose Medina
Supervisor Gavin Newsom
Supervisor Mabel Teng
Supervisor Michael Yaki
Supervisor Leland Yee
Mayor Willie Brown

Legislative Digest
June 8, 1998
FILE NO

98-0951

HOUSING DISCRIMINATION (SUPERVISORS BROWN, AMMIANO)
AMENDING ARTICLE 33 OF THE SAN FRANCISCO POLICE CODE, SECTION 3304,
TO PROHIBIT HOUSING DISCRIMINATION BASED ON SOURCE OF INCOME AND
OTHER ECONOMIC DISCRIMINATION.
The San Francisco Police Code currently prohibits discrimination in housing
transactions based on race, religion, color ancestry, age, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, disability or place of birth.
This legislation amends Section 3304 of the Police Code to expand prohibited
discrimination in housing transaction as follows:
1.

Prohibits housing discrimination based upon the lawful source of income or
rental assistance of any tenant, including federal, state, local or nonprofit rental
assistance or any other rental assistance, homeless assistance, security deposit
assistance or housing subsidy program.

2.

Prohibits the use of a financial or income standard for rental housing which either
(i) fails to account for sources of rental payments made on a tenant's behalf,
rather than directly by the tenant, or (ii) fails to account for the aggregate income
of unmarried persons residing in a unit on the same basis as the aggregate
income of married persons.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
BOARD of SUPERVISORS

OFF1'-'E OF THE LEGISLATIVE ANALYST
Gail Feldman, Chief Legislative Analyst

LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS
DATE:
COMMITTEE:
SPONSORS:
FILE:

July 2nd, 1998
HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES
SUPERVISOR AMMIANO; SUPERVISOR BROWN
98-0950 - UNITS REGULATED; RENT CALCULATIONS
98-0951 HOUSING DISCRIMINATION

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ORDINANCES:
* UNITS REGULATED; RENT CALCULATIONS (File 98-0950)
The proposed ordinance amends Chapter 37 of the San Francisco Administrative Code to include, within the San
Francisco Rent Ordinance, units occupied by tenants who receive tenant-based rental assistance or formerly received
project-based rental assistance or indirect assistance through HUD-insured mortgages. This legislation also provides
guidelines, under the San Francisco Rent Ordinance, that regulate the applicability of rent increase limitations, and
requires certain notices prior to rent increases or evictions for rental units occupied by tenants who receive tenant-based
rental assistance.

* HOUSING DISCRIMINATION (File 98-0951)
The proposed ordinance amends Article 33 of the San Francisco Police Code (Section 3304) to prohibit housing
discrimination based on source of income and other economic discrimination. This measure defines "source of income"
as all lawful sources of income or rental assistance, including governmental or nonprofit assistance, benefits or subsidies,
income from a rental assistance program, homeless assistance program, security deposit assistance program, and housing
subsidy program. This legislation also prohibits economic discrimination based on failure to account for any rental
payments made on behalf ofrecipients of tenant-based rental assistance on the same basis as those payments made
directly by other tenants. Also prohibited is economic discrimination that fails to account for the aggregate income of
unmarried tenants or prospective unmarried tenants on the same basis as the aggregate income of married tenants or
prospective married tenants.
CURRENT LAW:
HUD 's Provisions
Current federal law, under the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) allows property owners to evict
tenants who live in subsidized Section 8 units for "economic reasons" during the term of a tenant's lease agreement.
Economic reasons may include an owner's desire to sell the property, renovate, or rent the unit at a higher rate.
The Fair Employment and Housing Act
This law prohibits housing discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, marital status, national origin, ancestry,
familial status, or disability.
The San Francisco Police Code
Provisions in the San Francisco Police Code currently prohibit housing discrimination based on race, religion, color, age,
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, or national origin. There are no existing provisions addressing
housing discrimination based on source of income or rental assistance which may be used by tenants receiving subsidized
rental assistance.
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The San Francisco Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance
Current provisions in the San Francisco Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance ("Rent Ordinance) regulate rental
units in San Francisco, except units that are controlled or regulated by a governmental agency, Un.it or authority. The
Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Board (the "Rent Board") interprets this exception to include units occupied by tenants
who receive tenant-based rental assistance under programs such as the Section 8 certificate or voucher program, or the
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS ("HOPWA") rental assistance program. Because the Rent Board
interprets the Rent Ordinance to exempt these units, current provisions in this law are considered not to address rent
cakulations for exempt rental units occupied by tenants who receive tenant-based rental assistance.

PROPOSED LAW:
RE: Units Currently Exempt frfJm the Rent Stabilization Ordinance
Proposed amendments (File 98-0950) would expand the definition of "base rent" to include rent payments for units
occupied by tenants who receive tenant-based rental assistance, including Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) contracts
between the landlord and HUD that may expire or terminate for any reason. The proposed amendments also include
units currently occupied by tenants living in properties in which landlords have received a mortgage insured by HUD,
and where the mortgage terminates or expires.
The definition of "rental unit" is also expanded to include units occupied by recipients of tenant-based rental assistance
such as the Section 8 voucher program, the Over FMR Tenancy Program, and the HOPWA rental subsidy program.
However, this definition is used for purposes of applicability of rent increase limitations, duties of the Rent Board,
evictions, tenant rights in certain displacements, misdemeanors, civil actions, and severability.
Other proposed amendments to the Rent Ordinance mandate that notice requirements for rent increases or evictions,
would be in addition to any notice required as part of the tenant-based rental assistance program.

RE: Discrimination Based on Source of Income
The proposed legislation (File 98-0951) amends the Police Code to prohibit housing discrimination based on the lawful
source of income or rental assistance of any tenant,· including government or nonprofit rental assistance or any housing
assistance or subsidy program.
Proposed amendments would also prohibit housing discrimination which uses a financial or income standard which does
not account for rental payments, such as subsidies, made on behalf of tenants, but only accounts for payments made
directly by other tenants. According to the Rent Board, the proposed legislation would not require owners to rent to any
tenant, but would prohibit discrimination based on a tenant's source of income. Also prohibited is failure to account for
the aggregate income of unmarried tenants in the same way as the aggregate income of married tenants.
BACKGROUND:

Section 8 Programs
HUD funds Public Housing Authorities, such as the San Francisco Housing Authority (SFHA), which provide rental
assistance through Section 8 rental assistance programs or other housing assistance to low-income families. Income for
these households may generally not exceed 50 percent of the median income for the county or metropolitan area in which
that family chooses to reside. Other stipulations require recipients of rental assistance to pay rent in the private rental
market in an amount that is generally equal to 30 percent of adjusted income or some other payment standard set by
HUD. In addition, assisted units must be at or below the fair market rent (FMR) for that area, as determined by HUD. In
jurisdictions such as San Francisco, there is a huge gap between HUD's lower FMR rents and market rate rents.
Section 8 rental voucher and certificate programs are HUD's major programs targeted at very low-income persons, the
elderly, and disabled individuals who seek housing in the private market. The family pays 30 percent of their adjusted
401 Van Ness Avenue, Room 308 • Shn Francisco, California 94102-4532
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income directly to the landlord. The HA then pays the difference between the actual rent charged by the landlord and the
amount paid by the family, except in the case of vouchers, as described below.
Under the rental certificate program, the rent for the unit usually may not exceed a maximum rent, determined by the
local Housing Authority, and based on HUD standards established for each county and metropolitan area. The maximum
rents are adjusted on a periodic basis to keep pace with increased costs of rent and utilities. Rental certificate holders
generally pay 30 percent of their monthly adjusted income towards the rent and utilities. The household's share of the
rent is adjusted as household income changes, while the Housing Authority rental assistanc6 varies according to the
portion of rent paid by the family. Certificates become portable and may be trans,ferred to other jurisdictions, including
other states.
In the rental voucher program, the local Housing Authority determines a Payment Standard which is used to calculate the
amount of rental assistance a family will receive, but does not affect the amount of rent charged by a landlord or paid by
a family. A family that receives a rental voucher can select a unit which rents below or above the Payment Standard set
by the Housing Authority. Vouchers become portable and may be transferred to other jurisdictions, including other
states.

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA)
The HOPWA program provides rental housing assistance and supportive services for low-income persons with
HIV/AIDS and their families. Grants are provided by formula allocations to states and metropolitan areas with the
largest numbers of cases and incidence of AIDS. They are also awarded by selection through a national competition of
projects proposed by state and local governments and nonprofit organizations. Grantees are encouraged to develop
community-wide comprehensive strategies and form partnerships with area nonprofit organizations to provide housing
assistance and supportive services for eligible persons. In addition to rental assistance, HOPWA funds can be used for a
wide array of housing and support services, as well as for development costs which may include acquisition,
rehabilitation or new construction of housing units.
San Francisco's Rental Housing Situation
The City of San Francisco (''the City") faces one of the stiffest rental housing markets in the nation. Rising real estate
prices, generally attributed to a booming economy and a thriving industry in Silicon Valley, have increased the cost and
competition for housing.
In recent years, vacancy rates have hovered around 1 percent, and apartment rents have increased dramatically between
1995 and 1998 by 27 .1 percent, according to the UCLA Policy Institute. According to Realfacts and Metro Rents, rental
research firms, the average 2 bedroom apartment in San Francisco rents for $1,600 to $1,700 per month, which is in
contrast to the national average of $900 for a unit of similar size, according to the US Census Bureau.

Prepayment or Termination ofHUD-insured mortgages
HUD-insured mortgages were provided to owners for the creation of affordable housing serving very low income tenants.
These low interest mortgage programs, such as 22l(d)(3), 221(d)(4) and 236, were generally supplemented with rental
assistance in the form of project-based Section 8. As many of the mortgages expire, owners have the opportunity to
prepay mortgages held with HUD after 20 years, which enables them to unsubsidize units in their developments and raise
rents to market levels.
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POLICY ISSUES:
1. WHAT IS THE INTENT OF THE PROPOSED LEGISLATION?
The proposed legislation (Files 98-0950) brings units occupied by recipients of tenant-based rental assistance under
the Rent Ordinance. It codifies the current administrative interpretation by the Rent Board regarding the
base rent for units which come under the Rent Ordinance due to an expiration of subsidies for those units, and by
regulating rent increases and evictions for Section 8 tenants.
According to the Rent Board, this legislation would prevent evictions based on economij:: reasons, but allow owners
to use any of the fourteen "just cause" reasons in the Rent Stabilization Ordinanc~ for termihating rental leases held with
Section 8 tenants. In addition, "base rents" for units in HUD-assisted developments would be established at the
termination or expiration of the owner's project-based Section 8 contract with HUD, or the prepayment or maturity of the
owner's InJD-insured mortgage, and at the rate paid prior to expiration of that development's contract.
The proposed legislation (File 98-0951) also prohibits discrimination based on "source of income" and permits use of
all lawful sources of income, including governmental and nonprofit subsidies, as rental payments. The proposed
legislation is primarily intended to address discrimination against individuals who receive tenant-based rental assistance
from Section 8 and HOPWA programs. Landlord groups interpret this legislation as providing a broad definition for
rental income, and state that its requirements would interfere with business decisions that are made by owners in
qualifying potential tenants, including reviewing the creditworthiness of their income sources. According to the City
Attorney's Office, a definition that encompasses all lawful income sources, mitigates against the likelihood of owners
utilizing different income standards for recipients of rental subsidies which do not apply to other tenants.

2. HOW WOULD TENANTS AND LANDLORDS BE AFFECTED BY THESE PROPOSED MEASURES?
The San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (SFRA) is responsible for addressing issues related to the Section 8
program. According to SFRA there are currently 88 project-based Section 8 developments citywide representing 9,200
units that are occupied by tenants who receive project-based rental assistance. 57 of those developments are owned by
non-profit or cooperative providers of affordable housing, and the remaining 31 buildings are owned by private owners
who currently can "opt out" of Section 8 programs affecting approximately 3,300 units. According to SFRA, to date,
only one owner has filed a Notice of Intent to prepay his contract with the federal government, and there may be
additional filings in the future from other owners seeking to "opt out" of the Section 8 program.
The proposed legislation will affect tenants and private landlords in the following ways:
• Tenants - The San Francisco Housing Authority states that approximately 5, 100 households may be affected by
this legislation. These are households that currently occupy Section 8 assisted units comprised oflow-income
families, the elderly, disabled individuals, and persons with AIDS or HIV. The Housing Authority states that the
proposed legislation would help reduce the displacement of Section 8 recipients by limiting allowable rent
increases and preventing evictions based on economic reasons.
•

Landlords - The proposed provisions (File 98-0950) limit existing eviction rules which allow landlords to
issue 30-day notices to terminate Section 8 housing tenancies for economic reasons. The Rent Board states that
by bringing Section 8 assisted units under the Rent Stabilization Ordinance, landlords would be required to base
evictions on the fourteen "just cause" reasons. Current legislation by the San Francisco Board of Supervisors
seeks to strike down one of the "just cause" reasons which permits "owner move-in" (OMI) evictions of certain
tenants belonging to designated protected classes.
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The proposed legislation (File 98-0951) does not require landlords to rent units to any particular tenants. Instead, it
prohibits landlords from discriminating against tenants based on their source of income.
The San Francisco Neighbors Association (SFNA), a group representing landlords, states that the proposed
legislation will have limited effectiveness in terms of encouraging participation by owners in Section 8 programs,
which are generally perceived by most landlords to serve "high risk" tenants. In addition, SFNA states that the
legislation does not provide sufficient protections nor incentives for property owners who may want to rent to
Section 8 tenants. Since landlords in San Francisco can choose from a large pool of potential renters, the
effectiveness of this legislation is likely to be limited mostly to protecting exiSting Section 8 tenancies, as opposed to
securing rentals for potential renters who receive tenant-based rental assistance.

3. WHAT IS THE EXTENT OF THE HOUSING CRISIS FOR SECTION 8 TENANTS?
In 1997, there were 1010 total cancellations of subsidies by the Housing Authority for various reasons, including
cancellations due to families being unable to locate affordable housing. According to the San Francisco Housing
Authority (SFHA), at least 150 families were terminated for "economic reasons" as some landlords chose to prepay their
HUD-insured mortgages in order to be able to increase rents. In that same year, there were also 988 new Section 8 leases
in San Francisco. The Housing Authority states that it has renegotiated leases for tenants to preserve their tenancies at
higher market rates.
Section 8 certificates and vouchers have a 120-day limit within which a tenant is expected to locate housing. When
families are unable to locate housing locally, rather than lose their subsidies, they may choose to relocate to other
jurisdictions and states. However, this option is not available to HOPWA tenants. The Housing Authority states that
between May 1997 and December 1997, due to lack of affordable housing for Section 8 tenants, 34 percent of the 208
households that were issued vouchers for the first time, left or "ported out" of San Francisco to locate housing in other
jurisdictions.
In addition, annual adjustment factors published by HUD to determine rent increases for subsidized rents have
recently not accounted sufficiently for the realities of the City's rental market. In order to reduce the gap between
HUD's FMR rents and private rentals in San Francisco, HUD has permitted the Housing Authority to exceed the FMR by
10 percent on one-fifth of the total number of units under contract. However, SFHA indicates that the 10 percent
exception still does not bring rents to City market rates. This year, HUD has approved the Housing Authority's request,
and permitted this agency to further exceed the FMR by an additional I 0 percent, thus raising the exception rent authority
to 20 percent for this year.

4. HOW WILL TIDS LEGISLATION AFFECT RENT INCREASES FOR TENANT-BASED SECTION 8
PROGRAMS?
The San Francisco Housing Authority states that for participants of the Section 8 Voucher and Over FMR Tenancy
Option Programs, the allowable rent increase will remain unlimited until the base rent reaches the applicable Payment
Standard. Thereafter, base rent for these programs will be regulated by the Rent Ordinance. The Redevelopment Agency
states that project-based contracts will remain exempt from the Rental Stabilization Ordinance, and would thus be
unaffected by the proposed amendments.
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5. DO FLEXIBLE HUD POLICIES HELP TO ADDRESS THE HOUSING PROBLEM IN SAN FRANCISCO?
The Housing Authority states even with the higher FMR exception granted by HUD, rental housing is still
unaffordable for most families that depend on Section 8 subsidies. SFHA has responded to the housing problem by
switching families from certificates to the more flexible voucher subsidies. Voucher subsidies use the tenant's income
and HUD's established Payment Standard to arrive at a subsidy amount. The tenant's rent portion then becomes the
difference between the subsidy and the unit rent (Attachment 1 is a listing of recently published FMRs for San
Francisco's voucher and certificate programs). Vouchers also allow tenants to negotiate th~ir rents with their landlords,
and if the landlord increases the tenant's rent, it remains the tenant's decision to cover the increase or terminate the
tenancy.
6. WHAT IS THE LIKELY IMPACT OF TIDS LEGISLATION TO THE CITY?
The San Francisco Rent and Stabilization Board
This legislation would bring units occupied by recipients of tenant-based rental assistance under the regulation of the
Rent Board, which, in the past, has not been responsible for Section 8 and other subsidized tenancies.
The Rent Board states that it has not determined the impact of this proposed legislation on its department. However, its
new responsibilities, under this legislation, would entail reviewing evictions of tenants occupying units which were
formerly exempt from the Rent Stabilization Ordinance, and providing information to the public on issues related to
Section 8 programs. The Rent Board also cautions that under these new provisions, tenant protections could be limited
such that tenants may not be able to dispute rent increases or decreased services by landlords since some of their rental
payments would be covered by HUD's public assistance.

The San Francisco Redevelopment Agency
According to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (SFRA), the proposed legislation would allow SFRA to provide
direct information to owners of HUD-assisted developments on the sections of the Rent Stabilization Ordinance that
would directly affect them should they no longer receive federal assistance. The legislation is not expected to have any
financial impact on this department, but, according to staff, would provide the Redevelopment Agency with a vehicle for
addressing potential displacements by owners who rent to Section 8, HOPWA, and other subsidized tenants. According
to SFRA, the legislation would help facilitate its work in curbing potential displacements of Section 8, HOPWA, and
other subsidized tenants.
The San Francisco Housing Authority
The Housing Authority states that it does not expect the proposed legislation to have a substantial financial impact on its
operations. Currently, this agency does not provide advice to tenants that receive eviction notices, and expects that with
this proposed legislation, new responsibilities regarding evictions will be assumed by the Rent Board. The Housing
Authority may need to prepare information for its clients explaining which tenant issues can be facilitated by the Rent
Ordinance.

7. HOW ELSE IS THE CITY ADDRESSING HOUSING NEEDS FOR SECTION 8 TENANTS?
The San Francisco Redevelopment Agency states that in the past year, it has directed its efforts to tenant outreach and
education about changes in the Section 8 programs. Other efforts have been focused at working with owners of projectbased developments to convince them to continue their participation in the Section 8 program. SFRA is also approaching
owners who have indicated a desire to "opt out" about alternatives to market rates.
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8. WHAT OTHER LEGISLATIVE ACTIONS HAVE BEEN PASSED ADDRESSING TENANCIES IN SAN
FRANCISCO?
In the past year, the City's Board of Supervisors. (the Board) passed legislation extending protections for renters
occupying units located in San Francisco. This past March, it passed legislation on Apartment Unit Conversion
(File 97-034.01 ), which prohibited unlawful conversions of short term or transient use of apartment units designated for
permanent residency. The Board determined that such usage had an adverse impact for tenants with long-term leases,
and took units off the long term rental market.
This past May, the Board also amended the Rent Ordinance to allow general obligation bond passthroughs (File 98-0521)
for San Francisco's landlords. This legislation allows landlords who incur property tax increases resulting from
repayments of bonds issued between 1996 and 1998, to pass these increases to their tenants, under certain conditions.
Additional legislation is pending final approval by the Board to prohibit "owner move-in" (98-0805) evictions for tenants
who can verify claims of protected class. This legislation had been passed by the Board last December. However, legal
challenges by landlords led to a Superior Court ruling against the City. The City has since revised the OMI legislation in
response to an Appeals Court decision stating that the original measure did not provide landlords procedures for
verifying claims of protected status by tenants.
This proposed legislation (File 98-0950 and File 98-0951) will represent additional action taken by the Board, using the
City's Rent Ordinance, to extend protections to certain tenants from unexpected rent increases and evictions in San
Francisco.

9. HOW DOES Tms LEGISLATION RELATE TO SB 1730?
According to the City Attorney's Office, the proposed legislation (File 98-0951) prohibiting housing discrimination for
recipients of tenant-based rental assistance, is intended to mirror pending state legislation Senate Bill 1730, sponsored by
Senator John L Burton, and which has recently been amended in the Assembly. This bill, aimed at extending protections
for recipients of Section 8 and HOPWA programs, amends landlord-tenant laws for a three-year period and then sunsets
the provisions thereafter. These are some of the bill's provisions:
•

•

In San Francisco's housing market, where the monthly rent is more than $750 but less than $2,500, the legislation
would limit the landlord's current right to collect up to two month's rent as a security deposit. Instead, it would
permit the collection of one month's security at the start-up of tenancy and the second month's security in six equal
installment payments.
This bill would also prohibit a landlord from discriminating in the rental of housing units based upon a prospective
tenant's source of income, and would prohibit a landlord from using an arbitrary financial or income standard in
making a rental decision.

10. HAVE OTHER STATES PASSED SIMILAR LEGISLATION?
According to the Western Center on Law and Poverty, a Sacramento-based agency that advocates for low-income
persons, twelve (12) states, including Connecticut, the District of Columbia, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts,
Minnesota, New Jersey, North Dakota, Oklahoma, Utah, Vermont, and Wisconsin have passed legislation prohibiting
discrimination based on source of income and receipt of Section 8 rental assistance. This agency states that landlord
groups have filed legal challenges protesting this new legislation in some states. If California passes SB 1730, it would
bring it in line with other states which bar discrimination based on a renter's legal source of income.
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OPTIONS:
1. Approve the two companion measures as proposed to extend tenant protections under the Rent Ordinance to cover
units occupied by renters who receive tenant-based rental assistance.
2. Amend the proposed ordinance (File 98-0950) to clarify that tenants in programs with fixed tenant rent payments are
exempt from the Rent Ordinance for purposes of defining base rents.
3. Amend the proposed ordinance (File 98-0951) to clarify that source of income means OJ;l:ly local, state, federal or
non-profit administered benefit or subsidy programs.
4. Delay approval on these proposed measures pending passage of SB 1730, whose provisions closely mirror those
proposed in the proposed ordinance (File 98-0951 ).
5. Do not approve the two measures. Units covered under Section 8 programs would not be subject to provisions of the
San Francisco Rent Ordinance. Landlords who wish to terminate leases held with Section 8 tenants would be able to
base evictions on "economic reasons," as permitted under current ffiJD regulations. Tenant displacements from
subsidized units would continue to be addressed through Legal Aid or the Courts.

Prepared by: Clarice L. Duma (415/554-:7782)
[Report revised 7/2/98]
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By a member of the Board of Supervisors or the Ma?JS

JUN 8 PH 12: 55
Time Stamp or

I hereby submit the following item for introduction:

__j_

1. For reference to Committee:
An ordinance, resolution, motion, or charter amendment.
2. Request for next printed agenda without reference to Committee
3. Request for Committee hearing on a subject matter.
4. Request for letter beginning "Supervisor _ _ inquires ... ".
5. City Attorney request.
_ _ 6. Budget Analyst request.
7. Call file from Committee.
[Note: For the Imperative Agenda (a resolution not on the printed agenda, use a different form.]

Sponsor(s): Supervisor Brown, Ammiano
SUBJECT: Housing Discrimination
The text is listed below or attached:
Kindly see attached.

Signature of Sponsoring Supervisor:

~

For Clerk's Use Only:

Introduction Form

06/08/98

AFFIDAVIT
JULY 2, 1998

-

10:00 A.M.

Board Calendar
Economic Development, Transportation and Technology
Finance
_ _ _ _ Health, Family and Environment
xx

Housing and Neighborhood Services
Rules

xx

Mailing List Document No. ___4_18_0_L_ _ _ _ _ _ __
(date)

mailed on

JUNE 26, 1998

Mailing List from other Department or Agency also used and mailed on
same date:
- - - - - Yes

- - - - - No

/~- ~;\C~_,.rr------·

- V\..

erk/Clerk

Attachments:

File No.

Notice
Mailing List from other Department if applicable.

q f~ .--() C\~

(

(Word:Fonn:Affidavit for Meetings or Hearings)

EXHIBITB
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l!KllRDING R!QUl!!il'l!l ll't

Old Republic Title Company
022'4006322-AN
716/11 .. 1701/23
WHEN IU!tOIUll!D MAIL 'IO

l.Et+AAY Properties I DE, u.c

DOC- 2

-.

A11n ....u

5-H998181-00

lllPUIUC: TU.le Coo!plll'l!I

Thrsclay, JUL 14, 281! VJ111hl1

TU Pd

2P99 Market street
San Francisco, CA 94114

REEL

...

ni

11111111111

San Francisca Assessor-Recorder
ftabel s. T;IAssessar-Recarder

¥5.I

Nbr-HmB4321

931 IMAGE 0763

a<le/TD/1•3

Sl'G MCM!'l'lllS UM! JS l'!ll. llS::DllllBl'll UE

Grant Deed
The undersigned grantor(s) dedare(s):
transfer from
tD
for
Documentary transfer tax Is financing purpaseS=S11me IHI ownership
( ) c:cmputed on l'ull value of property mnveyed, or
( ) c:cmputed on full value less of liens and encumbram:.1!S l'l!ll'lllllnlng at time of sale.
( ) Unincorporated ara:
(X) City of San Francisco
(X) Realty not sold.
FDR AVAWABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which Is hereby admowledged,
I.EM/RAY Properties, U.C. a Ollll'ornla llmlted llablllty company

u.c u.c

hereby GRANT(S) ID
LEM·RAY Properties I DE, LLC, a Delaware llmlted llablllty company
that property In City of San Franclsm, San Franclsm County, State of Olllfomla, described as:
See "Exhibit A" attached herem and made a part hereof. Property known as 935 Geary Street and 81 9th Street, San

Francisco, CA

Man Tn Stalements to
Date

lune 01. 2005

Grantee at address al.lave

ORDER NO. : 0224006322.·AN

EXHIBirA

'135~~

The lane! referred to Is situated In the County of San Francisco, City of San Frandsal, State of
Cllllfomlil, and Is described as follows:
BEGINNING at a pclmt on the southeriy line of Geary street, d!Stant thereon 120 feet westerly
from the westerly line of Larlcln Street; running thence westerly alcng said One of Geary Street
40 feet; thence at a right angle southerly 120 feet to the northerly line of Myrtle Street; thence
at a right angle easterly along the said Hne of Myrtle street 40 feet; and thence at a rlg~t angle~
norltlerly 120 feet. to the point of beginning.
·

BEING portion of WESTERN ADDMON BLOCK NO. 10.

(Being Assessor's Lot 011; Block 0716)

ORDER NO.: 0224006321·AN

8\

qth~

EXHIBIT A
The land referred tc Is situated In the County of San Frandsen, aty of San Fmndsa>, State of
Cllllft:lmla, and Is described as follqws:
1

00.

COMMENCING at a point on the nartheastel1y Dne of
street, distant thereon 75 feet
northwestel1y from the northwestel1y Rne at Mission Street; ru11t1in9 thence oorthwestel1y and
along said line of 9t.h street, 50 feet; thence at a right angle northeasterly 100 feet; 6 Inches;
thence at a right angle southeastel1y SO feet; thence at a right angle southwestel1y 100 feet, 6
Inches tc the·polnt of mmmen~ ·
BEING part of 100 VARA BLOCK 414.
(Being Assessor's Lot 023; Block 3701)

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

DENNIS J. HERRERA, State Bar#l39669
City Attorney
,
YVONNE R. MERE, State Bar#l73594
Complex & Affirmative Litigation Team Leader
BRADLEY A. RUSSI, State Bar #256993
SARA J. EISENBERG, State Bar#269303
Deputy City Attorneys
1390 Market Street, 7th Floor
San Francisco, California 94102-5408
Telephone:
(415) 554-3800
Facsimile:
(415) 554-3985
E-Mail:
sara. eisenberg@sfgov. org
E-Mail:
brad.russi@sfgov.org

ELECTRON LCALLY

FILED
Superior Court or Calffomla,

County of San Francisco

04/19/2016

Clerk of the Court
BY:VANESSA WU

Deputy Clerk

Attorneys for Plaintiff
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO AND
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

10

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

11

COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

12

UNLIMITED JURISDICTION

13
14
15

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN
FRANCISCO, a Municipal Corporation, and
the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, by and through DENNIS
HERRERA, City Attorney for the City and
County of San Francisco,

16
17

Plaintiff,

18

vs.

19
20

Case No. CGC-15-548551
PROOF OF SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS
RELATING TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

Hearing Date:
Time:
Place:

May 12, 2016
9:30 a.m.
Department 501

Date Action Filed:
Trial Date:

October 21, 2015
Not set

CHUCK M. POST, individually and d/b/a
APARTMENTSINSF.COM; LEM-RAY
PROPERTIES I DE, LLC; and DOE ONE
through DOE FIFTY,

21
Defendants.
22,+-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

23
24

I, Alison Lambert, declare as follows:

25

I am a citizen of the United States, over the age of eighteen years and not a party to the above-

26

entitled action. I am employed at the City Attorney's Office of San Francisco, Fox Plaza Building,

27

1390 Market Street, Sixth Floor, San Francisco, CA 94102.

28
PROOF OF SERVICE OF DOCS RELATING TO MOTION FOR PI

Case No. CGC-15-548551

On April 19, 2016, I served the following documents:

1

2

3

1.
2.

4

3.

5

4.

6

5.

7
8
9
10

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION;
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF
PLAINTIFFS' MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION;
DECLARATION OF BARBARA SMITH IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS' MOTION
FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION;
DECLARATION OF CHERI TONEY IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS' MOTION
FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION;
DECLARATION OF BRADLEY A. RUSSI IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS'
MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION;
REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS' MOTION
FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION;
[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE IN
SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS' MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION;
[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION; and
PROOF OF SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS RELATING TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION
FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

6.

7.
8.
9.

11

on the following persons at the locations specified:
12

13

Edward Singer
340 Lorton Avenue, Suite 202
Burlingame, CA 94010

14
Email: ed@edsinger.net
15
Counsel for Defendants
16
in the manner indicated below:

17
BY FILE & SERVEXPRESS E-SERVICE. SYSTEM: I electronically served true and correct
copies of the above documents in accordance with the Court's Local Rule 2.10 requiring all documents to be
served upon interested parties via File & ServeXpress System.

18
19

BY PERSONAL SERVICE: I sealed true and correct copies of the above documents in addressed
20

envelope(s) and caused such envelope(s) to be delivered by hand at the above locations by a professional
messenger service. A declaration from the messenger who made the delivery D is attached or [81 will be

21

f'ded separately with the court.

22
23
24

25

[21

BY ELECTRONIC MAIL: Based on a court order or an agreement of the parties to accept electronic
service, I caused the documents to be sent to the person(s) at the electronic service address(es) listed
here:ed@edsinger.net. Such document(s) were transmitted via electronic mail from the electronic address:
alison.lambert@sfgov.org 1:81 in portable document format ("PDF") Adobe Acrobat or Din Word document
format.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is
true and correct.

26
27
28

ALISON LAMBERT
2
PROOF OF SERVICE OF DOCS RELATING TO MOTION FOR PI

Case No. CGC-15-548551

